Public Document Pack

Democratic Services EPSOM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

ENVIRONMENT AND SAFE COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE

Tuesday 21 March 2023 at 7.30 pm

Place: Council Chamber, Epsom Town Hall

Link for public online access to this meeting:
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/reqgister/4230534145337926240
Webinar ID: 657-217-211

Telephone (listen-only): +44 20 3713 5012, Telephone Access code: 854-065-375

The members listed below are summoned to attend the Environment and Safe Communities
Committee meeting, on the day and at the time and place stated, to consider the business set
out in this agenda.

Councillor John Beckett (Chair) Councillor Rob Geleit
Councillor Arthur Abdulin (Vice-Chair) Councillor Steven McCormick
Councillor Steve Bridger Councillor Lucie Mcintyre
Councillor Monica Coleman Councillor Julie Morris
Councillor Chris Frost Councillor Humphrey Reynolds

Yours sincerely

-

Chief Executive

For further information, please contact democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk or tel: 01372
732000

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

No emergency drill is planned to take place during the meeting. If the fire alarm sounds
continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the building by the
nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council staff. It is vital
that you follow their instructions.

e You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts;
e Do not stop to collect personal belongings;

¢ Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but
move to the assembly point at Dullshot Green and await further instructions; and

e Do not re-enter the building until told that it is safe to do so.



https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/4230534145337926240




Public information

Please note that this meeting will be held at the Town Hall, Epsom and will be available to
observe live on the internet

This meeting will be open to the press and public to attend as an observer using free
GoToWebinar software, or by telephone.

A link to the online address for this meeting is provided on the first page of this agenda and on
the Council’s website. A telephone connection number is also provided on the front page of this
agenda as a way to observe the meeting, and will relay the full audio from the meeting as an
alternative to online connection. A limited number of seats will also be available in the public
gallery at the Town Hall. For further information please contact Democratic Services, email:
democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk, telephone: 01372 732000.

Information about the terms of reference and membership of this Committee are available on
the Council’'s website. The website also provides copies of agendas, reports and minutes.

Agendas, reports and minutes for this Committee are also available on the free Modern.Gov
app for iPad, Android and Windows devices. For further information on how to access
information regarding this Committee, please email us at Democraticservices@epsom-

ewell.gov.uk.

Exclusion of the Press and the Public

There are no matters scheduled to be discussed at this meeting that would appear to disclose
confidential or exempt information under the provisions Schedule 12A of the Local Government
(Access to Information) Act 1985. Should any such matters arise during the course of
discussion of the below items or should the Chairman agree to discuss any other such matters
on the grounds of urgency, the Committee will wish to resolve to exclude the press and public
by virtue of the private nature of the business to be transacted.

Questions from the Public

Questions from the public are permitted at meetings of this Committee. Any person wishing to
ask a question at a meeting of this Committee must register to do so, as set out below.

Up to 30 minutes will be set aside for written or oral questions from any member of the public
who lives, works, attends an educational establishment or owns or leases land in the Borough
on matters within the Terms of Reference of the Environment and Safe Communities
Committee which may not include matters listed on a Committee Agenda.

All questions whether written or oral must consist of one question only, they cannot consist of
multi parts or of a statement.

The question or topic may not relate to a specific planning application or decision under the
Planning Acts, a specific application for a licence or permit of any kind, the personal affairs of an
individual, or a matter which is exempt from disclosure or confidential under the Local
Government Act 1972. Questions which in the view of the Chairman are vexatious or frivolous
will not be accepted.

To register to ask a question at a meeting of this Committee, please contact Democratic
Services, email: democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk, telephone: 01372 732000.

Written questions must be received by Democratic Services by noon on the tenth working day
before the day of the meeting. For this meeting this is Noon, 7 March 2023.

Registration for oral questions is open until noon on the second working day before the day of
the meeting. For this meeting this is Noon, 17 March 2023.


mailto:democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:Democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
mailto:Democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
mailto:democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk

AGENDA

QUESTION TIME
To take any questions from members of the Public.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are asked to declare the existence and nature of any Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests in respect of any item of business to be considered at the
meeting.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 5 - 10)

The Committee is asked to confirm as a true record the Minutes of the Meeting
of the Committee held on 24 January 2023 (attached) and to authorise the Chair
to sign them.

TREE MANAGEMENT PLAN (Pages 11 - 42)

This report presents the Council Tree Management Plan and seeks support for
its adoption. The Plan was subject to a 5-week stakeholder consultation, as
agreed by this committee on 18 October 2022, and this report presents the
outcome.

SURREY ENVIRONMENT PARTNERSHIP - SEP2025 (Pages 43 - 76)

The Surrey Environment Partnership (SEP) has generated an approach
document for the period 2023 — 2025, which it has called SEP2025. This report
requests that the Committee reviews and endorses SEP2025 on behalf of the
Council.

PLAYGROUND PROJECT FOR BOURNE HALL (Pages 77 - 82)

To seek approval to release Section 106 funds to provide a multi-sensory play
area in Bourne Hall park for children under six years old.

2023/24 ANNUAL INCREASE FOR HOME GROUND AGREEMENTS (Pages
83 - 88)

This report recommends the annual increase to the home ground agreement
charges coming into effect from 1 April 2023.



Public Document Pack
Agenda Item 3

1

Minutes of the Meeting of the ENVIRONMENT AND SAFE COMMUNITIES

COMMITTEE held at the Council Chamber, Epsom Town Hall on 24 January 2023

PRESENT -

Councillor John Beckett (Chair); Councillor Arthur Abdulin (Vice-Chair); Councillors
Steve Bridger, Chris Frost, Rob Geleit, Jan Mason (as nominated substitute for
Councillor Monica Coleman), Steven McCormick, Julie Morris and Humphrey Reynolds

Absent: Councillor Monica Coleman and Councillor Lucie Mclintyre

Officers _present: lan Dyer (Head of Operational Services), Sue Emmons (Chief

Accountant), Richard Chevalier (Parking Manager), Mark Rachwal (Environment and
Sustainability Officer) and Dan Clackson (Democratic Services Officer)

15

16

17

18

QUESTION TIME

No questions were received from members of the public.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The Committee confirmed as a true record the Minutes of the Meeting of the
Committee held on 18 October 2022 and authorised the Chair to sign them.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Fees and Charges 2023/24

Councillor Julie Morris, Other Interest: Councillor Julie Morris confirmed that she
rents an allotment from the Council. She stated that she believed it to be a non-
prejudicial interest.

CLIMATE CHANGE ACTION PLAN: REVIEW & PROGRESS UPDATE

The Chair proposed that Councillor Arthur Abdulin (Vice-Chair) act as Chair of
the meeting for the duration of the consideration of item 4 of the agenda. The
proposal was for the following reasons:

a) Councillor Arthur Abdulin (Vice-Chair) was the current Chair of the
Climate Action working group.

b) The Chair deemed it would be valuable Chairing experience for Councillor
Arthur Abdulin.

The proposal was agreed by the Committee.

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council Page 5



Agenda Item 3

Meeting of the Environment and Safe Communities Committee, 24 2
January 2023

19

20

The Committee received a report providing a review and update on the progress
of the Council’s Climate Change Action Plan.

Following consideration, the Committee resolved (5 in Favour, 1 Abstention, and
the Chair and Vice-Chair (acting Chair) not voting) to:

(1) Agreethe proposed amendments to the Climate Change Action Plan.

(2) Consider the progress made on the delivery of the Council’s Climate
Change Action Plan over the year to date.

Councillor Steven McCormick was not present at the meeting at this time and did
not take part in the vote.

The Environment and Sustainability Officer left the meeting at the conclusion of
the consideration of the item.

CAR PARK WORKING GROUP - TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Committee received a report setting out the Terms of Reference for the Car
Park Working Group.

Following consideration, the Committee unanimously resolved to:

(1) Approve the amended Terms of Reference, with the new working
group starting in the new municipal year.

Councillor Steven McCormick was not present at the meeting at this time and did
not take part in the vote.

CAR PARK FEES AND CHARGES

The Committee received a report seeking the agreement of the Committee for
the recommended off street parking fees and charges for 2023/24, as proposed
by the Car Park Working Group.

Councillor Steven McCormick became present at the meeting at 19:45 during
consideration of the item. He did not take part in the debate.

The following matters were considered by the Committee:

a) Car Park Charges: A Member of the Committee (and Member of the Car
Park Working Group) highlighted the importance of Car Parks as a source
of income for the Council and explained that certain car parks’ charges
are set at higher rates in order to encourage greater use of car parks in
areas of the borough that would benefit from increased footfall. The Chair
offered his thanks to the Car Park Working Group for their work.

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council Page 6



Agenda Item 3

Meeting of the Environment and Safe Communities Committee, 24 3
January 2023
b) Publication of Car Park Charges: The Parking Manager confirmed that

21

d)

notices of variation of car park charges are published in the local paper,
Epsom Comet.

West Hill Car Park: A Member of the Committee (and Member of the Car
Park Working Group) explained that West Hill car park is very busy and
used regularly for overnight parking, and was considered by the working
group to be a significant opportunity to create income for the Council.

Upper High Street Annual Permits: In relation to the ‘Car Park Fees and
Charges, Appendix 2 — Additional Information: Car Park Permit Proposal
2023/24’, the Parking Manager explained that the annual permit will not
provide an absolute guarantee of a space for permit holders due to the
limited spaces in the Upper High Street car park. He suggested that 40
permits as a maximum could be a reasonable amount to issue, but stated
that he did not expect the number of applications to reach that high. The
Chair suggested that marking out designated spaces for permit holders
could cause a potential loss of income for the Council due to the resulting
reduction in parking spaces available to daytime shoppers. The Chair
stated that the scheme will remain open to review by the Car Park
Working Group and the Committee, and that the Committee will be
notified of the number of permits sold once the scheme goes live.

Following consideration, the Committee unanimously resolved to:

(1)

(2)

Agree the car park fees in appendix 1, as proposed by the Car Park
Working Group;

Agree the car park permit fees in appendix 2, as proposed by the Car
Park Working Group.

Councillor Steven McCormick did not take part in the vote.

FEES AND CHARGES 2023/24

Prior to debate, the Chair proposed that an amendment be made to the
recommendation on the report. The original recommendation included on the
report at the time of the publication of the agenda was as follows:

(1) agree the fees and charges for 2023/24 as set out at Appendices 1,
2 and 3.

The amended recommendation, as proposed by the Chair, was as follows:

(1) Agree the fees and charges for 2023/24, excluding car park fees
and charges as already agreed in Item 6.

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council Page 7



Agenda Item 3

Meeting of the Environment and Safe Communities Committee, 24 4
January 2023

22

The Chair explained that the reason for the amendment was the following:

a) Appendix 2 of the Fees and Charges 2023/24 report (item 7) contained
incorrect information that did match the corresponding information as set
out in appendix 1 of the Car Park Fees and Charges 2023/24 report (item
6).

The amendment was agreed by the Committee.

The Committee received the report recommending fees and charges for which
the Committee is responsible, with the new charges being effective from 1 April
2023.

The following matters were considered by the Committee:

a) Allotments Charge Increase and Allotments Staff: The Head of
operational Services explained that increasing the allotment charge had
been identified as a viable option for generating additional income. He
stated that a need had been recognised for an allotment staffing resource
and that the additional budget sourced from the increased allotment
charge could go towards its funding.

b) Allotment Working Group: It was considered by the Committee that an
Allotments Working Group be established. It was considered that the
working group discuss and monitor matters such as waste management
and water usage and work towards raising awareness, providing
transparency, and communicating the cost to the Council in providing
allotment facilities.

Following consideration, the Committee unanimously resolved to:

(1) Agree the fees and charges for 2023/24, excluding car park fees and
charges as already agreed in Item 6.

REVENUE BUDGET 2023/24

The Committee received a report setting out budget estimates for income and
expenditure for Environment & Safe Communities services in 2023/24.

The following matters were considered by the Committee:

a) Impounded Domestic Waste Vehicle: In relation to paragraph 3.6 of the
report, the Chair explained that the insurance policy does not cover the
costs associated with the impoundment of the domestic waste vehicle in
guestion, given the circumstances under which it was impounded. He
confirmed it was unknown as to when the vehicle would be returned to the
Council.

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council Page 8



Agenda Item 3

Meeting of the Environment and Safe Communities Committee, 24 5
January 2023
b) Staffing Budget: The Chief Accountant explained a budget is set aside

23

d)

yearly to fund staff pay increments and inflationary increase to salaries
and distributed amongst service areas at the end of the year.

Covid Rebasing Exercise: The Chief Accountant explained that following
changes to service usage as a result of the pandemic, an exercise was
carried out at the start of 2022 to determine the new level of service usage
in order to amend the base budget accordingly.

Increase in Tree Maintenance Contract: In response to a question from
a Member, the Chair explained that the increase was the result of a
variation to the contract held with the supplier that maintains Epsom and
Ewell Borough Council’s trees.

Following consideration, the Committee unanimously resolved to:

(1)

Recommend the 2023/24 service estimates for approval at the
budget meeting of full Council in February 2023.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2023/24

The Committee received a report summarising the proposed 2023/24 capital
programme and a provisional programme for 2024/25 to 2027/28. The
Committee’s approval was sought for the programme to be submitted to Council
in February 2023.

The following matters were considered by the Committee:

a)

b)

Alexander Recreation Ground Dojo Lease Condition: It was
considered by the Committee that a condition be added to the Dojo’s
lease stipulating that the occupants adopt a responsibility to engage with
park users in the interest of encouraging and promoting safe and orderly
behaviour in the park and discouraging and preventing anti-social and
disorderly behaviour.

Report to Committee Members from CMG: It was considered by the
Committee that, prior to meetings at which the Committee is asked to
make decisions in relation to the Capital Programme, a report resulting
from meetings of the Capital Member Group, a full list of the BID
applications, and the asset management plan be made available to
Members of the Committee in the interest of information and
transparency. The Committee considered that clarity be provided with
regard to the governance arrangements in place for meetings of the
Capital Member Group.

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council Page 9



Agenda Item 3

Meeting of the Environment and Safe Communities Committee, 24 6
January 2023

Following consideration, the Committee unanimously resolved to:

(1) Submit the capital programme for 2023/24, as identified in section 3
of this report, to the Council for approval on 14 February 2023.

The meeting began at 7.30 pm and ended at 9.00 pm

COUNCILLOR JOHN BECKETT (CHAIR)

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council Page 10



Environment and Safe Communities Committee  Agenda ltem 4
(21 March 2023)

TREE MANAGEMENT PLAN

Head of Service: Victoria Potts, Interim Director of Environment,
Housing and Regeneration
Wards affected: (All Wards);
Urgent Decision? (yes/no) No
If yes, reason urgent decision
required:
Appendices (attached): 1. Tree Management Plan
2. Stakeholder Consultation Statement
Summary

This report presents the Council Tree Management Plan and seeks support for its
adoption. The Plan was subject to a 5-week stakeholder consultation, as agreed by this
committee on 18 October 2022, and this report presents the outcome.

The Tree Management Plan sets out a framework for how the Council will manage its
current tree population and where appropriate increase existing tree cover on land in the
ownership of the Council.

The plan also sets out a process for dealing with tree planting and memorial planting
requests.

Recommendation (s)
The Committee is asked to:

(1) Agreeto adopt the Tree Management Plan set out in Appendix 1

1 Reason for Recommendation

1.1 The Council owns and manages substantial areas of land and estate
across the borough and is responsible for the reasonable management of
trees on its land, of which there are approximately 41,000.

1.2  The Council has committed to actions in the Climate Change Action Plan
and Biodiversity Action Plan to increase tree cover in the borough and
support and promote appropriate locations for tree planting.

Page 11



Environment and Safe Communities Committee  Agenda ltem 4
(21 March 2023)

1.3

14

15

1.6

The Council committed to an action in the Annual Plan 2022/23 to
developing a Tree Planting Plan.

This plan will set the framework for how the Council manages its current
tree stock, now and in the future. It will set the plan for how we will
increase the tree cover in the borough and contribute to the commitments
made in the Climate Change Action Plan and Biodiversity Action Plan.

In addition, there is no current agreed process for dealing with ad hoc tree
and memorial planting requests. This plan introduces a new process for
addressing requests for such tree planting.

A targeted stakeholder consultation received a predominantly positive
response to the introduction of a Tree Management Plan including offers
of support for the tree planting plans.

Background

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

According to figures from the ‘National Tree Map’ there are around
140,000 trees in Epsom & Ewell, of which 41,000 are on Council owned
land. This rises to 60,000 when including co-managed sites.

The borough currently has approximately 26% tree cover, which is well
above the UK average of 13% and slightly above the Surrey average of
24%. It is noted that some wards, in the more urban areas, have a much
lower tree cover than the borough average.

Trees provide a significant environmental, aesthetic, cultural and
economic benefit for our residents and the importance of effectively
managing the current tree population is clear, whilst also seeking
opportunities to increase tree cover where appropriate.

The Council currently has an agreed Tree Maintenance Contract, renewed
in 2022, and a formal Tree Risk Policy agreed in 2015. There is no formal
overarching tree management framework.

The focus of the Tree Management Plan is to provide a framework for how
the Council manages its current tree population and where appropriate to
increasing tree cover on Council owned land.

It is recognised that trees play an important role in sequestering carbon
and helping to provide resilience to climate change impacts, for example
cooling, shading and flood alleviation.

The Council has committed within its Climate Change Action Plan and
Biodiversity Action Plan to seek opportunities to increase tree cover. The
Tree Management Plan sets out a proposed plan for tree planting on
Council owned land.

Page 12



Environment and Safe Communities Committee  Agenda ltem 4
(21 March 2023)

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

A Tree Cover Study was undertaken in 2019 which assessed the current
tree cover within the borough and identified areas where there may be
opportunity for further tree planting. This has been used to inform the
plans for tree planting sites.

The plan also includes a formal process for dealing with tree planting and
memorial planting requests, which are currently only dealt with on an ad
hoc basis.

Without adopting this Tree Management Plan there will be no agreed
framework for increasing tree cover in the borough and no formal process
for dealing with planting requests.

The draft Tree Management Plan was subject to a five weeks’ stakeholder
consultation between the 7 November 2022 and the 12 December 2022. A
total of 10 responses were received, with 2 responses covering more than
one organisation. Feedback was predominantly positive and welcoming of
a Tree Management Plan, with offers of support for the tree planting plans
and for seeking external funding.

Comments received mainly proposed minor amendments and additions
which have been incorporated where appropriate. Where comments
related to existing planning processes, including Tree Preservation
Orders, these have been shared with the Planning Development team.

Wider points raised centred around clarification on tree planting numbers
and sites and tree policy in relation to development.

The Plan sets out that proposed tree planting sites and numbers are an
initial indication on what could be possible and that for agreed sites it is
the intention that a more detailed planting plan will follow with further
detail. As such these comments will be taken into consideration as part of
the more detailed planning.

As a new Local Plan is in development comments received regarding
trees and new development have been shared with the planning policy
team to consider.

A statement on the consultation outcomes can be found in Appendix 2.

Risk Assessment

Legal or other duties

3.1

3.2

Equality Impact Assessment
3.1.1 None arising from this report

Crime & Disorder

Page 13



Environment and Safe Communities Committee  Agenda ltem 4
(21 March 2023)

3.2.1 There are no implications in terms of crime and disorder
3.3 Safeguarding
3.3.1 None arising from this report
3.4 Dependencies
3.4.1 None arising from this report
3.5 Other
3.5.1 None arising from this report
4  Financial Implications

4.1 Planting and establishing trees can have significant financial implications.
The Council will be exploring opportunities for external funding and
support for tree planting schemes, along with actively encouraging
community involvement.

4.2 Section 151 Officer’'s comments: The Council has an annual budget of
£145,870 for its tree maintenance contract. Any work arising from the Tree
Management Plan requiring expenditure over and above this budget
would need additional funding to be identified.

5 Legal Implications

5.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from the contents of this
report.

5.2 Legal Officer’'s comments: None arising from the contents of this report.

6 Policies, Plans & Partnerships
6.1 Council’s Key Priorities: The following Key Priorities are engaged:
6.1.1 Green & Vibrant and supports delivery of the Annual Plan.

6.2 Service Plans: The matter is included within the current Service Delivery
Plan.

6.3 Climate & Environmental Impact of recommendations:

6.3.1 The plan supports objectives in the Biodiversity Action Plan and
Climate Change Action Plan, maintaining and enhancing
biodiversity and contributing to increased carbon sequestration and
meeting the Council climate change targets.

6.4 Sustainability Policy & Community Safety Implications:

Page 14



Environment and Safe Communities Committee  Agenda ltem 4
(21 March 2023)

6.4.1 No specific implications.

6.5 Partnerships:
6.5.1 None

7 Background papers

7.1 The documents referred to in compiling this report are as follows:
Previous reports:
o E&SC Committee: Tree Management Plan 18 October 2022
Other papers:

° None

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Agenda Item 4

“EWEL

BOROUGH COUNCIL -~

Tree Management Plan
2023

T

i

Page 17



Contents

Introduction

Background

Policy Context

Guiding Principles

Climate Change

Managing the Current Tree Stock

Tree Establishment on Council Owned Land

Monitoring & Review

Page 18

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

o o o b~ W W

18
21



Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

“There is something that inspires the lover of nature with an
inexpressible feeling of awe in the contemplation of the perfect
form of a noble tree”

Francis George Heath (1887): Our Woodland Trees

1. Introduction

Epsom & Ewell Borough Council (the Council) recognises the huge benefit trees and
woodlands provide for people, nature and the climate. Trees and woodlands together
with other key ‘green infrastructure’, such as hedgerows, chalk grassland, meadows,
heathland and wetlands provide multiple benefits. Not only do trees help us
commune with nature but they provide enormous benefits for health and wellbeing,
biodiversity, air purification and carbon capture. Trees provide a significant
environmental, aesthetic, cultural and economic benefit for our residents.

The Council owns and manages substantial areas of land and estate across the
Borough. In total the Council’s landholding including co-managed sites has a
combined area exceeding 1,000 hectares. This makes the Council well placed to
connect and add value to existing woodland sites through tree planting and natural
colonisation, on the basis of the ‘right tree in the right place, for the right reasons’
and as part of wider climate and biodiversity plans for Epsom & Ewell.

The focus of Epsom & Ewell Council’'s Tree Management Plan is to set out how the
Council will manage its current tree population and where appropriate, increase
existing tree canopy and numbers of trees on land in the ownership of the council.
This is due to the Council having control, management responsibility and liability for
these trees in the future. We aim to care for our trees, restore neglected treescapes
and maintain healthy, resilient, trees and woodlands for the future.

The plan will link in with current and emerging policies and requirements around
environmental net gain and local nature recovery strategies as set out in the
Environmental Bill.

2. Background

Epsom & Ewell’s existing tree stock already has enormous value and should not be
underestimated. Notably the value of existing mature trees and how efficient they are
at carbon sequestration in comparison with newly planted trees and in the context of
formulating the plans proposed under this tree management plan.

According to figures taken from the ‘National Tree Map’ there are around 140,000
trees in Epsom & Ewell, of which 41,000 are on Council owned land. This figure rises
to 60,000 when including co-managed sites such as Nonsuch Park. The Borough
currently has approximately 26% tree cover, which rises to 46% in our open spaces.
Both figures are considerably above the UK average of 13% (10% for England) and
in line with the Surrey average of 24%, demonstrating the high tree cover the

Page 19



Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

Borough as a whole already benefits from. However, it is worth noting that some
wards, in the more urban areas, have a much lower tree cover than the Borough
average.

The importance of effectively managing the current tree population is clear and
crucially needs sufficient investment, whilst also seeking opportunities to ideally
increase tree cover, and replace lost trees in open spaces and parks to partially
compensate for losses, where appropriate.

When considering planting further trees, care needs to be taken not to harm the
mosaic of existing habitats and to ensure the widest possible diversity of plant and
animal life. For example, it would not be appropriate to plant trees on the chalk
grassland found on Epsom Downs, the grazed areas on Epsom Common Local
Nature Reserve or the flower rich hay meadows of Horton Country Park Local Nature
Reserve.

In 2020, the Council produced a new 10-year Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) to help
ensure both the long term protection and enhancement of biodiversity within our
borough. The plan includes actions to assist implementation of the Climate Change
Action Plan; investigate how much carbon dioxide the Borough’s tree cover absorbs
and support and promote appropriate locations for street tree planting, natural
regeneration of woodland, sustainable planting schemes and other plant-based
measures that help tackle climate change issues.

A Biodiversity Action Plan working group, which includes key external partners,
supports implementation of the BAP.

3. Policy Context

The Government set out its long-term plan for the whole treescape (trees, woodlands
and forests) in England in the England Trees Action Plan (2021), along with its
approach to protecting and enhancing our natural landscapes and habitats in
England in the 25 Year Environment Plan (2018).

The importance of protecting and improving our existing woodlands is emphasised in
the plan, along with the need to plant vastly more trees in England, using the
principle of the right trees, in the right places for the right reasons approach. Trees
and woodlands are recognised as having a vital role in delivering net zero
greenhouse gas emissions by 2050, achieving the goals of the 25 Year Environment
Plan and delivering the Governments ambitions to conserve and enhance
biodiversity.

Increased tree planting is a goal in the 25 Year Environment Plan with an aspiration
to plant 180,000 hectares of trees by the end of 2042; and in January 2020 the UK’s
Committee on Climate Change (CCC) released a report on Land Use which asserted
that Britain must double its tree planting efforts in order to contribute towards a zero
carbon UK by 2050. The latest update report (2022) from the CCC highlights that

Page 20



Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

planting rates remain well below the UK Governments commitment and will require a
rapid increase to reach the 2025 target.

At the local level, Surrey County Council published its Climate Change Strategy and
Tree Strategy in 2020 with an emphasis on tree planting. The Tree Strategy sets a
target for facilitating the planting of 1.2 million new trees by 2030. This will only be
achievable through partnership working as a key part of its delivery, including with
local government, public bodies and community groups.

This Tree Management Plan aims to reflect the national policy on protecting and
improving our treescapes and support increased and sustainable tree planting,
where appropriate.

4. Guiding Principles

A ‘Green & Vibrant’ Borough is one of the 5 themes set under the Future40 long-
term vision for Epsom & Ewell. This plan intends to support this theme and the
delivery of the wider vision and priorities set under the Council’s Four-Year Plan
including to ‘enhance the borough’s natural assets, preserving and increasing
biodiversity’ and to ‘work with partners to reduce our impact on the environment and
move closer to becoming carbon neutral’. It will also deliver elements of the Council’s
Climate Change Action Plan and Biodiversity Action Plan as well as linking in with
the emerging Local Plan.

The following four guiding principles set out our roadmap for delivering this.
1. Promote

e Raise the profile and promote the benefit of trees in the Borough.

e Support and encourage a diverse group of volunteers to help in our tree
management activities; helping to build on the work of the Tree Advisory
Board.

e Improve cross departmental collaboration.

e Encourage other landholders to invest in trees.

2. Protect

e Analyse our tree and woodland resource, as resource allows, to determine its
extent, composition, health, ecosystem and capital values, and determine its
overall sustainability and resilience.

e Keep tree records up to date.

¢ Review plans to ensure trees continue to be an integral element of
sustainable growth.

e Develop the concept of treescape led town planning to create tree friendly
places for trees to thrive amid urban expansion.

e Use legal powers as appropriate to enforce tree protection and establishment
legislation.

Page 21



Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

. Manage

Mange trees and woodland in accordance with best practice and to promote
biodiversity.

Ensure resources are sufficient and focused to manage risks from trees to
keep people and property safe from tree hazards.

Manage customer expectations, experience, and satisfaction levels.

Enhance the management of trees and woodlands so they are more resilient
to stresses by reducing risks and encouraging greater diversity.

Support investment in green jobs with appropriate arboricultural specialism to
effectively manage and maintain our tree resource.

Evaluate where treescape and woodland restoration projects are required and
need to be incorporated into site management plans.

Enhance

Create the right place for the right tree, ensuring the right growing
environment aftercare and ongoing management.

Create a plan to increase the overall canopy cover in the Borough in
accordance with sound biodiversity principals to provide a more even
distribution focusing in areas where tree cover becomes naturally eroded or
where cover is historically lower.

Ensure tree supplies are from biosecurity secure suppliers and that tree
establishment products aim to be from sustainable materials and are
responsibly sourced.

Develop a sustainable programme of tree establishment and replacement
over the long-term using native trees for environmental buffering in more
natural settings, ensuring greater species and age class diversity as well as
improved adaption to climate change.

Encourage natural regeneration and rewilding in appropriate settings with
sufficient ongoing maintenance to develop the right tree population and age
structure.

Seek resource and grant aid, and work in partnership with others to enhance
tree cover.

Measure tree cover by periodic review of tree mapping analysis and assess
success of the trees/woodland created.

5. Climate Change

It is recognised that climate change is a significant threat and driver of change within
the Borough. To respond to this threat, the Borough Council has committed to
tackling climate change in the Borough and embarked on an ambitious programme
of work with partners to reach net zero carbon in our own operations by 2035.

The Council developed a Climate Change Action Plan in 2020 and included an
action to increase tree cover in the Borough to enhance the Borough'’s biodiversity
and increase carbon capture.

Page 22



Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

Trees play an important role in both sequestering carbon and helping to provide
resilience to climate change impacts, for example cooling, shading and flood
alleviation. They also have proven benefits in tackling poor air quality by filtering out
small particles and produce oxygen for us to breathe.

Calculating woodland sequestration rates is challenging as there is considerable
variance depending on species, age, density and timber use and change with time.
Using model sequestration figures from the Chartered Institute of Ecology and
Environmental Management (CIEEM) and based on the Borough'’s current tree cover
it can be estimated that between 8,000-10,000 tonnes of CO2 are sequestered
annually by Epsom & Ewell’s current tree stock.

Government national statistics show that in 2019 the total carbon emissions for the
Borough of Epsom & Ewell were 256,400 tCO2e. The current tree cover in Epsom &
Ewell, therefore, contributes to mitigating up to 3.5% of total Borough carbon
emissions.

Whilst it is recognised that trees can capture carbon dioxide, the contribution planting
further trees can make to reducing atmospheric CO2 levels, set against current
emissions is relatively small in the short to medium term. Tree planting alone will not
provide the solution to reaching net zero carbon. However, as carbon neutrality is
approached in the coming decades the mitigating function of the Borough'’s tree
cover will improve significantly, indicating that increasing the Borough'’s tree cover is
a worthwhile activity. This is especially true when taking into account the other
benefits to air quality, cooling, townscape and flooding, in particular for the more
urban areas of the Borough.

The key factors that should guide the decision-making process about increasing the
Borough’s tree cover are biodiversity gain/loss and the practicalities and predicted
costs of future management.

Climate change will potentially have an adverse effect on the existing tree population
in terms of greater tree losses from climate affected factors such as storms and
rising temperatures. It will therefore be necessary to adapt management practices to
address these challenges, including species selection and water supply.

Whilst not tree cover per se, hedgerows can play a role in contributing to reducing
CO2 emissions (as well as supporting biodiversity) and should be increased on
Council owned land wherever feasible and sustainable.

Page 23



Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

6. Managing the Current Tree Stock
6.1 Tree Management

The role of a professionally qualified Tree Officer or Urban Forest Manager is pivotal
to the management of the Council’s urban forest resource.

The Council is legally required by the Occupiers Liability Act 1984 to take reasonable
care to “maintain its land in such a condition that it does not harm any person or
damage any property”. This requirement is reinforced in certain circumstances by the
Health and Safety at Work Act 1974.

Trees are a potential liability and therefore it is important for the Council to comply
with this duty of care and not to put persons or property at unreasonable risk from
tree hazards.

Trees need ongoing maintenance and management if we are to maintain a healthy
and vibrant urban forest. Fundamental to this care is the need to provide sufficient
funding for this purpose.

Programmed tree inspections and maintenance of trees on Council managed land is
undertaken by arboricultural maintenance contractors. A new tree maintenance
contract was tendered and agreed in 2022 for a 3-year period (with option to extend),
replacing the previous contract which ran from June 2012.

The contract includes provision for a tree inspections programme; tree maintenance;
tree planting and aftercare; emergency call out (including extra resource to respond
to storm events) and Oak Processionary Moth (OPM) control.

It is important to maintain a continuity of service in this provision due to the risks that
arise from unmaintained trees. The Contract includes key services indicators to
manage the contractor’s performance.

Succession planting and tree replacement are also important aspects of the tree
management plan. The tree maintenance contract includes provision for tree
replacement and further consideration will be given to where tree replacement will be
appropriate as per the ‘right tree in the right place, for the right reasons’ approach.

6.2 Tree Risk

The Council has implemented a formal Tree Risk Policy since 2015. The Policy
includes a tree risk management framework which is based on a “proportionate to
risk” inspection regime for trees in order to ensure that the stock is maintained in a
reasonably safe condition. Inspection frequency is therefore prioritised in accordance
with risk-based zoning as set out in the following Table.

Page 24



Agenda Iltem 4

Appendix 1

Zone

Medium Risk, e.g.,
lower use open spaces
and parks, cemeteries,
church yards, parks,
footpaths, trees
adjacent to lower use
roads domestic
property/ gardens and
business premises.
Ash dieback medium
risk zones

Usage Criteria

Inspection regime

High volumes of
traffic

High likelihood of
public access.

Formal inspection
undertaken every two
years by a qualified
arboriculturalist.

Moderate volumes
of traffic

Moderate likelihood
of public access.

Formal Inspection
undertaken every three
years by qualified
arboriculturalist

Low Risk e.g., low use
footpaths, rural
woodland paths, low
use open spaces in
areas with infrequent
public access

Low volumes of
traffic

Low likelihood of
public access.

General inspections by
arboriculturalist or other
operational staff.

Page 25

Records of the tree risk zones are held on the Councils GIS system and
programmes of inspection targeted in accordance with the regimes.

The Council operates a tree inspection process based on the analysis of the
physiological condition and biomechanical structure of the tree in its setting: The
method will involve analysis of target, defect assessment, impact potential and
probability of failure. Remedial tree works from assessment are set with the
following target priorities for attention:




Agenda Iltem 4

Appendix 1

Priority Designation Target Examples

Response

1 Emergency Within 24 Work which is required
hours immediately to alleviate

an immediate risk.

2 High Within 12 To mitigate a serious risk
weeks or abate an actionable

nuisance

3 Medium Within 1 year Works to mitigate

nuisances, lesser defects
etc.

4 Low Within 3 Cyclical and cultural
years or pruning and pollarding
reassessment
of priority
within this
timeframe

6.3 Tree Service Requests & Tree Removal

The Council receives a significant number of tree service requests annually from the
public, ranging from reports of fallen trees to requests for pruning. The main focus of
the Council tree risk policy is to manage trees for the critical reasons of public safety
and abatement of actionable nuisance. Tree removal is generally undertaken only as
a last resort and with sound arboricultural justification for the works.

In the interest of safety, the public will not be consulted for approval as the decision
to undertake the tree works will be made based on technical capability and
experience of qualified Officers at the Council.

The following guidelines set out the Council’s reactive approach to tree service
requests:

Guideline Comment

Emergencies

The Council aim to inspect dangerous or We will normally arrange for an

fallen trees as soon as possible to inspection within 4 hrs. However, we
assess the risk, determine the extent of may need more time in the event of
the hazard and implement appropriate storms in which case priorities will be
health and safety measures determined based on a triaged

assessment of risk.

10
Page 26



Agenda Iltem 4

Appendix 1

Guideline

Comment

The removal of fallen trees and
branches will be prioritised based on
risk.

wN e

The priorities will be:

Risk to people
Disruption of traffic or business
Threat to property

Trees which overhang or are close to
property

The Council will not normally undertake
tree work to a tree which overhangs
neighbouring land unless the tree is
dangerous or causing an actionable
nuisance. The Council aim to take
action to prune back branches which are
growing into a main low-rise building,
remove unsafe/dead trees, larger dead
wood and broken/fractured branches.

The landowner is entitled to
sensitively prune the overhanging
branches or roots in accordance with
good arboricultural practice and
providing they do not trespass.
Customers are advised to log the
intention to prune Council trees with
the Customer Contact Centre. Where
trees are covered by Tree
Preservation Order a formal notice of
pruning must be accepted/agreed by
the Council before pruning can
commence.

Highway obstructions

The Council aim to take action to
prevent obstruction caused by our public
realm trees to the adjoining highway.

While this will normally be achieved
through the tree management regime
the Council will undertake reactive
works if necessary.

Other

The Council will not normally fell or
prune trees to alleviate the natural or
seasonal consequences of trees
itemised below:

Falling leaves, sap, fruit, nuts, other
seeds, pollen, bird droppings or
blossom, reduction or increase in
moisture, suckering or seeding, insects,
or build-up of algae on fences paths or
other structures

to improve satellite dish or TV reception
to clear telephone wires or masts
because they are perceived to block
light or shade gardens (unless assessed
to be a nuisance hedge)

because they are perceived to be “too
big or too tall’

Page 27

11



Agenda Iltem 4

Appendix 1
Guideline Comment
The Council will not normally act in Tree roots cannot bore into drains, but
response to allegations that a tree is they can exploit any existing cracks.
damaging a private drain. The owner is responsible for ensuring

that drains are watertight and would
normally be expected to undertake
any remedial work required where a
root has trespassed in this way.

The Council will not normally undertake Landowners have the right to prune
root pruning on private land. roots on their property. Care is
needed because damage to roots can
destabilase trees, damage tree health
and allow entry of decay

organisms. Root pruning should only
be carried out under professional
arboricultural direction.

6.4 Pests, Diseases & Biosecurity

Climate change, international travel and trade have increased the frequency of pests
and disease entering the UK. The current tree population may not be resilient to
these new pests and diseases as they would not normally meet under natural
circumstances. This can have devastating consequences on tree numbers and
canopy cover, which will reduce the benefits the Council relies on trees to provide for
residents. This adds to the need for this Plan to help identify opportunities to replace
lost trees, succession planting and new planting sites.

Prevention is better than cure and appropriate species selection, purchasing of stock
from biosecure sources, adequate planting and aftercare, and integrated pest and
disease management practice are the best ways to protect Epsom & Ewell’s trees.

6.4.1 Ash Dieback

The Council recognises that Ash Dieback is a significant issue for tree stocks and
public safety in Epsom & Ewell. It will need to be carefully managed through
strategies and a coordinated approach to ensure trees are safely managed and that
harm to biodiversity and landscape character is mitigated.

There are no exact figures as to the number of Ash trees in Epsom and Ewell but a
reasonable estimate, based on national coverage figures, would be there being at
least 20,000 in the Borough.

Currently, Ash Dieback is present throughout Epsom and Ewell and is particularly
evident on young trees, and in young plantations. Initially it was first observed on
Epsom Downs (2014) and in Ash saplings in Horton Country Park LNR in (2015).

12
Page 28



Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

At these sites it has been observed that the disease has progressively spread into
Ash trees of all sizes and it is now noticeable that many trees have progressive twig
dieback and thinning crowns.

An inspection during the summer of 2022 of footpath trees on Epsom Downs
recorded over 200 larger Ash trees in need of removal. They are condemned as a
result of the disease and because they are rapidly becoming unsafe. The disease is
firmly established across the Borough now with significant numbers of pole stage
trees dead and many larger trees now exhibiting dead branches or noticeably
denuded crowns from more progressive dieback. The rate of Ash Dieback is now in
a state of surge which will accelerate further over the next couple of years to a highly
critical stage. The numbers of unsafe Ash trees will pose high levels of public safety
risk and have a manifestly detrimental effect on the Boroughs landscape.

Based on observational evidence from other landowners the anticipated progression
of tree mortality/advanced dieback is likely to follow the timeline set out in Figure 1:

Estimated Progression of Ash Dieback in Epsom and Ewell

% Infected Ash Trees

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Year

e Progression of Ash dieback

Figure 1: Line graph showing the estimated progression of Ash Dieback on trees in the Borough

The Council recognises that it is a considerable financial challenge to deliver a
robust plan to manage the effects of Ash Dieback but cannot be complacent with this
issue. We will therefore take a risk-based approach to managing unsafe Ash trees
through the tree management contract in line with the risk management policy set
out above and focussing on those trees that may cause harm to the public. Where
trees are lost to Ash Dieback, replanting in these locations, where appropriate, will
be prioritised as part of the tree planting plans (detailed in the next section).

6.4.2 Oak Processionary Moth (OPM)

Oak Processionary Moth (OPM) is widespread on Oaks in the Borough and is a
potential hazard to human and animal health. The caterpillars of OPM are nest

13
Page 29



Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

building and have the capacity to cause irritation due to their hairs. Spraying control
has been undertaken by the Forestry Commission but ceased in 2020 as the
Borough was designated into the core infestation zone that has spread from South
West London.

The Council aims to have a coordinated control of this pest but acknowledges that
this is becoming increasingly challenging now that the pest is established in our Oak
dominated woodlands. In line with national practice, the Council is moving towards a
risk-based approach to OPM control in line with the risk management policy set out
above and focussing on those trees that may cause harm to the public The Council
will continue to observe the natural predation of the OPM caterpillars and whether
adjustments are necessary if infestation patterns change. Provision for limited control
of spraying and nest control has been incorporated into the new tree maintenance
contract for the occupational health and safety of our tree work contractor. This
includes some provision for high risk, low nest treatments.

6.4.3 Other pests and diseases

Whilst Ash Dieback and OPM are the most serious current pest and disease threats
to our Borough, there are others which are likely to impact or are possible future
threats to tree cover (e.g. Acute Oak Decline, Ramorum Disease, Red banded
Needle Blight, Xylella and Chestnut Blight). Appropriate mitigation will follow a risk-
based approach.

6.5 Trees & Planning
6.5.1 Tree Preservation Orders (TPO)

Trees may be protected under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 by a Tree
Preservation Order. To be eligible for a TPO, a tree should be of amenity value and
under threat (it is expedient for the Council to take action). A tree of amenity value
contributes to the local landscape and provides public benefit. It could be a tree that
is in a prominent place or is visible from a public highway.

A TPO makes it an offence to wilfully damage or destroy a protected tree, group of
trees, woodland or defined area. The planning authority’s written permission is
required to prune any living part of the tree including roots or to cut the tree down.

All trees within Conservation Areas are also protected above a certain size. Itis a
legal requirement to give written notice of any intention to prune or remove any trees
for property within a Conservation Area.

The Council operates an application process to assess and decide on all tree work
except for exempt pruning works (removal of dead wood or fractured/broken
branches). Applications can be made via the Council website (www.epsom-
ewell.gov.uk/residents/online-forms).

14
Page 30


https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/residents/online-forms?field_form_category_value=Apply
https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/residents/online-forms?field_form_category_value=Apply

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

We will assess TPO applications and grant or refuse consent where appropriate, in
line with national guidance. The process involves considering the amenity value of
the tree and planning policy balanced against the reasons for the work, good
arboricultural practice, risks of compensation and the impact on protected ecology.
Tree works permitted will be required to be performed to the correct professional
standard - British Standard 3998.

A review of the current TPO policy is due to take place. The intention is that TPOs
will not be placed on trees on Council owned land as the Council is a responsible
custodian and will manage trees as set out in this plan.

An online map showing the location of TPO’s in the Borough can be found on our
website. (https://maps.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/myeebc)

The Local Planning Authority can consider whether to prosecute where unlawful
works are undertaken to protected trees.

6.5.2 Tree Replacement Notice (TRN)

There is a duty requiring landowners to replace a tree removed, uprooted or
destroyed in contravention of a Tree Preservation Order. This duty also applies if a
protected tree outside woodland is removed because it is dead or presents an
immediate risk of serious harm. The Council in it's capacity as The Local Planning
Authority may also impose a condition requiring replacement planting when granting
consent under a Tree Preservation Order for the removal of trees. The authority can
enforce tree replacement by serving a ‘tree replacement notice’.

In administrating tree work applications, the Council is proactive at routinely
specifying tree planting details, as appropriate, where tree planting duty and
conditions arise.

Section 207 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 gives local planning
authorities the powers to enforce an unfulfilled duty under section 206 to replace
trees or woodlands by serving on the landowner a ‘Tree Replacement Notice’. The
Council as Local Planning Authority may also serve a tree replacement notice to
enforce any unfulfilled condition of consent granted under a Tree Preservation Order,
or imposed by the Secretary of State on appeal, that requires tree replacement.

Government guidance on this process advises: If the Local Planning Authority
believes, in the circumstances, that replacement trees should be planted, it should
first try to persuade the landowner to comply with the duty voluntarily. The authority
should discuss the issue with the landowner and offer relevant advice.

The Council seeks to follow this government advice favouring voluntary compliance
and cooperation, along with an element of self-regulation. However, enforcement of
tree replacement conditions and duties can be pursued where necessary.

15
Page 31


https://maps.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/myeebc.aspx?tab=map&MapSource=EEBC/Planning
https://emea01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.legislation.gov.uk%2Fukpga%2F1990%2F8%2Fsection%2F207&data=04%7C01%7C%7C3736cbf2fcc84fccd82d08d9931163dd%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637702525175143013%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=AwQTvQgbtTXQ7fhhaCpa7s7CFykxwK9hjkPIA80aK8E%3D&reserved=0

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

6.5.3 Conservation Areas

A section 211 notice is required when performing works on trees which are in a
conservation area which are not subject to a Tree Preservation Order (TPO). The
local authority can reply by providing a TPO or by allowing the work to go ahead. As
it is not an application for consent, it cannot be refused or accepted with conditions.
A replacement tree should be planted in the space if a tree is removed or destroyed.
This should be of the same species and size within reason.

Where the duty is not complied with, local authorities have powers to issue tree
replacement notices (TRNS).

Applications can be made via the Council website (www.epsom-
ewell.gov.uk/residents/online-forms).

6.5.4 Heritage and Veteran Trees

The Council recognises the importance of heritage and veteran trees. A heritage tree
is one that is part of our history and culture and may have particular appeal due to
their appearance, landscape character or architectural setting. A veteran tree is
normally an aged tree which shows ancient characteristics such as: a low, fat and
squat shape because the crown has reduced in size through age; a wide trunk
compared with others of the same species; hollowing of the trunk. Veteran trees are
important because of their ecological or cultural value.

Identifying and mapping veteran tree locations is a significant task but would have
the benefit of supporting better management and preservation of these trees in the
Borough. A limited amount of mapping to develop a register has taken place to date
as part of the delivery of the previous Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP). The new BAP,
adopted in 2020, identifies the continuation of veteran tree management and
recording across the Borough as a key future and on-going project.

Veteran trees are considered heritage assets in planning terms and are a material
consideration in planning applications.

6.5.6 Trees & New Development

Trees in urban areas face many pressures. Increases in the density of urbanisation
can reduce tree friendly spaces. Trees with inadequate space to grow can result in
an inharmonious interaction between those trees, people and the built environment.
Appropriate integration of trees into our townscape needs to be well planned if the
multiple benefits of trees are to become deliverable. Increasingly new development
will need to become treescape led where the right space is created for the right tree.

The Council recognises the advances in treescape design and implementation as set
out in design guides such as those produced by the Tree Design Action Group
(www.tdag.org.uk/).

16
Page 32


https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/residents/online-forms?field_form_category_value=Apply
https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/residents/online-forms?field_form_category_value=Apply
https://www.tdag.org.uk/

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

The Council will follow the best practice guidance whenever possible to help create
tree friendly spaces where trees can thrive for maximum benefit.

Our approach to trees and green infrastructure will be set out as part of the
development of the new Local Plan policies and Infrastructure Delivery Plan.

Under the Environment Act 2021 Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) is being introduced
which will require all new development to deliver a minimum 10% increase in the
amount of biodiversity. This policy is due to come into force by late 2023. Local
Nature Recovery Strategies (LNRS) are also being introduced which will be a new
system of spatial strategies for nature which will plan, map and help drive more
coordinated action and investment in nature’s recovery. The Council will be
considering its approach to supporting the delivery of BNG and LNRS in Epsom and
Ewell in conjunction with the development of the new Local Plan.

6.6 Trees on Highway

Surrey County Council (SCC) are the highway authority and are responsible for the
majority of trees on public roads (in the verge), pavements and footpaths. Details on
how they maintain trees on the highway can be found on the SCC website
(www.surreycc.gov.uk/trees).

EEBC do own some verges, and there is potential, at a small scale, for additional
tree planting, which will need to be balanced against the increased need for regular
maintenance, road safety and opportunities for wildflowers.

The Borough Council support the enhancement of sustainable sylvan streets with
appropriate financial resource for management. Opportunities will be sought to
create sylvan streets when developing the new Local Plan and in the consideration
of applications through the Council’s planning function.

6.7 High Hedges

Under anti-social behaviour legislation the Council is able to deal with complaints
regarding high hedges within the area.

The Council’s role is not to mediate or negotiate between the complainant and the
hedge owner, but to judge whether the hedge is adversely affecting the
complainant’s reasonable enjoyment of their property. If the circumstances justify it,
the Council will issue a remedial notice to the owner of the hedge setting out the
action they must take to remedy the problem and the date by which they must
comply.

The Council provides further details, including the complaint form and fee on our
website (www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/high-hedges).

17
Page 33


https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/roadworks-and-maintenance/trees-grass-and-hedges/trees
https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/high-hedges

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

7. Tree Establishment on Council Owned land

7.1 Opportunities for Council tree planting

A desktop study was undertaken in 2019 which assessed the current tree cover
within the Borough and identified areas where there may be opportunity for further
tree planting. The study identified 21 locations owned by the Borough Council that
had potential for planting or natural succession. Following a further review of the
sites in 2022, 10 were identified for a more detailed assessment for tree planting or
woodland succession. A list of the sites can be found in the table below. For each
site an estimation is given of the number of trees that could be planted.

The study also highlighted that care needs to be taken when considering planting
further trees. The Borough is home to a variety of existing habitats which provide a
diversity of plant and animal life and not all would be appropriate for tree planting.
There therefore needs to be a careful balance between preserving existing habitats
and increasing tree cover in appropriate locations.

As a high level review the sites put forward will require further assessment and
consultation to confirm their validity, along with tree planting numbers and species
mix, but give an initial indication on what could be possible on Council owned land.
For agreed sites it is the intention that a more detailed planting plan will follow with
further detail. It is intended that the planting plan will be delivered over an 8-year
period up to 2030.

There is a need for a sustainable continuity approach to tree planting over the long
term. Recent experience has shown that ambitious schemes that involve mass
planting over a short period can suffer from high levels of mortality if there is drought.
It becomes a challenge to keep the high numbers of vulnerable young trees
sufficiently irrigated especially if hosepipe restriction bans are imposed.

7.1.1 Proposed tree planting sites

Site name Estimated planting Ward

no.
Auriol Park 100 Auriol
Hogsmill LNR — by Always Avenue | 100 West Ewell
Hook Road Arena 500 Court
Long Grove Park 1860 Court
London Recreation Ground 1100 Ewell
Manor Park — Christchurch Rd & 1200 Stamford
former Cricket Field
Royal Avenue Open Space 140 Cuddington
Replacements for Ash dieback loss | 1000 Various
(various)
Total 6000

18
Page 34



Agenda Iltem 4

Appendix 1
7.1.2 Proposed succession sites
Horton Country Park — Great Westcotts Copse 20 Stamford
Horton Country Park — Pond Wood extension 60 Stamford

Total 80

In woodland areas natural regeneration will be the primary means of re-stocking,
unless stocking levels require a boost in density or diversification of species by grant
schemes. Natural regeneration can reduce the need for tree guards and can also
create resilient woodlands as it may enable adaptation to local sites, the changing
climate, and new pests and diseases. We will prioritise the use of this approach
where it will bolster the connectivity of habitats and can provide important buffers to
existing woodland.

7.2 Tree planting requests on Council owned land

The Council has developed this strategy for tree planting on its own land and any
public requests received for additional planting will be considered against the
proposed or targeted planting sites. Tree planting requests can be made via the
online reporting forms on the Council website (www.epsom-
ewell.gov.uk/residents/online-forms). Where planting requests are agreed they will
be delivered in line with the principles of this strategy. There may be an application
cost to assess the viability of tree planting sites and the cost for the Council to
supply, plant and care for the tree will be expected to be covered by the applicant.

7.3 Tree planting on non-Council owned land

While the focus of this strategy is the planting of trees on Council owned land, the
Council will still seek to encourage tree planting in appropriate locations on privately
owned land. This should follow the principle of ‘right tree in the right place for the
right reasons’, and the council will utilise its communication channels and collaborate
with business and the community to promote the benefits of trees.

7.4 Tree planting on Highway

As highlighted, trees on the Highway fall under the responsibility of Surrey County
Council. Any planting in these locations would be led by the County Council but the
Borough Council will seek to actively co-operate with the County Council to
encourage additional planting in suitable locations. The County Council has provided
a Highway Tree Planting Guide in the appendix of the Surrey Tree Strategy which
can be found on the SCC website (www.surreycc.gov.uk/Surreys-Tree-Strategy).

19
Page 35


https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/residents/online-forms?field_form_category_value=Report
https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/residents/online-forms?field_form_category_value=Report
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0017/225620/Surreys-New-Tree-Strategy-June-2020.pdf

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

7.5 Process for planting

Planting and establishing trees has significant financial implications and the Council
will explore opportunities for external funding and support for tree planting schemes.
Also, the Council will actively encourage community involvement in planting and
aftercare programmes.

A proportion of sites could be undertaken in-house with the support of volunteers, as
part of biodiversity enhancement works.

All planting will be planned for the period between November and March, which is
commonly recognised as the best time of year for tree planting.

It is not the purpose of this strategy to detail how best to plant a tree. There is plenty
of best practice advice available such as from The Tree Council
(https://treecouncil.org.uk/planting-guidance).

7.6 Recording of tree planting

The Council will keep a record of all trees planted on its land on an annual basis. It is
recognised that the Council is not the only organisation carrying out tree planting in
the Borough and to address this the Council will aim to collect tree planting data
annually from SCC, the Tree Advisory Board (TAB) and other community groups.
This will help us measure tree planting in the Borough.

7.7 Aftercare

Good aftercare for young trees for 2-3 years after planting is essential to ensure that
the investment in trees is not wasted. This is particularly true for larger ‘standard’
trees. Aftercare of trees can be significantly resource intensive. The Council will
actively seek to involve the local community to help with watering and aftercare of
newly planted trees. However, the corporate tree contractor, where possible, will also
be employed to water trees on a regular basis.

The Council will seek to plant smaller sizes of tree stock, where possible, which have
a lower aftercare requirement, increasing the cost effectiveness of planting schemes.

7.8 Memorial planting on Council owned land

The Council recognises the wish of many residents to remember loved ones with a
memorial tree in a public green space. The Council is happy to accommodate
requests for memorial trees in most cases, but this must be balanced with the need
for green spaces to be enjoyed by a wide range of park users and residents.
Memorial planting will be focussed on a number of sites available across the
Borough. The Council will ensure that the memorial tree process is managed and
regulated for the mutual benefit of all.

20
Page 36


https://staging20.treecouncil.org.uk/what-we-do/planting-and-care/planting-guidance/

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

Applications for a memorial tree will be made via an online form on the Council’s
website. There will be a set fee to the applicant for the Council planting a memorial
tree. This is to cover sourcing, planting, maintenance, and admin costs associated
with memorial planting. Once an application is received, the Council will:-

e Respond to your request and confirm location for the tree;

e Send you an invoice for the tree, its planting and tree guards;
e Upon payment, confirm a timescale for planting;

e Notify you in writing that the tree has been planted.

All memorial trees will be sourced by the Council and will be planted between the
months of November and March. The species of tree to be planted will be subject to
agreement. Where appropriate, the applicant will be encouraged to water the tree in
early growth. The Council will be unable to accept responsibility for the loss of a tree
due to damage or vandalism.

Plaques will not be permitted on trees planted in parks for safety and maintenance
reasons.

8. Monitoring and Review

This document is a living document and will be reviewed annually to ensure it
remains relevant and in line with policy developments. Progress on tree planting
plans will be reported to the Environment & Safe Communities Committee annually.

21
Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



By

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Epsom & Ewell Borough Council

Tree Management Plan

Stakeholder Consultation Statement

Persons consulted as part of the Consultation

The draft Epsom & Ewell Borough Council Tree Management Plan was subject to a
five weeks’ stakeholder consultation between the 7 November 2022 and the 12
December 2022. The table below provides a list of all stakeholders who were directly
consulted.

Stakeholder list

Tree Advisory Board

Friends of Epsom & Ewell Parks

Friends of Horton Country Park

Epsom Common Association

Lower Mole Partnership

Epsom & Ewell Residents Associations

Main Political Parties

Sustainable Epsom & Ewell

Butterfly Conservation

Jockey Club

London Borough of Sutton

Surrey County Council

Epsom & Ewell Biodiversity Action Group

The Council notified all stakeholders via email of the consultation and included a
copy of the draft Tree Management Plan. Stakeholders were asked for their view on
the plan, with four questions (set out below) helping to guide responses.

Are the guiding principles clear and appropriate?

Do you have any comments on the proposed tree planting sites?
Can you offer any support towards undertaking the tree planting and

establishment?
Any further comments on the plan?

Page 39



Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2

Summary of the main points arising from consultation responses

We received 10 responses relating to the Epsom and Ewell Borough Council Tree
Management Plan, of which 2 responses were on behalf of more than one
organisation.

‘An inspirational document which describes clearly EEBC’s plans for
managing trees’ —

Friends of Auriol Park
‘Very welcome and well-presented initiative’ —
Epsom Town RA

‘Yes to guiding principles being clear and appropriate. The Plan gives a
thorough overview of the issues, particularly with regards to the guiding
principle of ‘right tree, in the right place, for the right reason’ —

Surrey Countryside Partnership

‘Generally seems clear and appropriate. Very pleasing that the Council
intend to increase the number of trees in the borough in a properly
considered fashion’ -

Epsom Common Association

e Positive feedback was received on the introduction of a Tree Management
Plan and on the document in general.

e 5 responses included the offer of support for undertaking tree
planting/establishment or support for seeking funding. A record of those
offering support will be kept for consideration when the detailed planting plans
are made.

e There was general support for tree planting locations, but also questions
raised about planting numbers at some sites, size of trees to be planted and
clarification on planting location at sites. The Plan does set out that this is an
initial indication on what could be possible and that for agreed sites it is the
intention that a more detailed planting plan will follow with further detail. These
comments will be taken into consideration as part of the more detailed
planning.

e There were comments received relating to trees & new development. The

Plan sets out that a new Local Plan is in development and these comments
have been fed on to the planning policy team to consider.

Page 40



Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2

e Comments were received regarding existing planning processes including on
Tree Preservation Orders and Tree Replacement Notices. These comments
have been shared with the planning development team. The Plan sets out that
the Council follows Government guidance in favouring voluntary compliance
and cooperation, along with an element of self-regulation before considering
the need for utilising enforcement powers.

e Comments received on memorial planting were noted and, where appropriate,
will be considered as part of the site identification for memorial planting.
Options for memorial planting were put to the Residents Group on 5
September 2022 and the preferred approach, as set out in the Plan, agreed.

e Where minor amendments and additions were proposed, these have been
incorporated into the Plan where appropriate.

Next Steps

Following consideration of the comments received it is proposed that the Epsom &
Ewell Borough Council Tree Management Plan be presented to the Environment and
Safer Communities Committee for adoption.

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



Environment and Safe Communities Committee  Agenda ltem 5
21 March 2023

SURREY ENVIRONMENT PARTNERSHIP - SEP2025

Head of Service: lan Dyer, Head of Operational Services

Wards affected: (All Wards);

Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No

If yes, reason urgent decision

required:

Appendices (attached): Appendix 1: SEP2025 as approved by SEP
Members Group on 23 November 2022

Summary

The Surrey Environment Partnership (SEP) has generated an approach document for
the period 2023 — 2025, which it has called SEP2025. This report requests that the
Committee reviews and endorses SEP2025 on behalf of the Council.

Recommendation (s)
The Committee is asked to:

(1) Endorse SEP2025 on behalf of the Council.

1 Reason for Recommendation

1.1 From time to time the Surrey Environment Partnership (SEP) generates
countywide strategy documents, as is legally required within a two-tier
area for waste such as Surrey.

1.2 The Committee has always endorsed such strategies on behalf of the
Council, including any caveats that the Committee may deem appropriate.

1.3 As detailed below, SEP2025 is an approach document only, rather than a
fully-fledged strategy document. However, SEP has asked that each
Surrey authority reviews and endorses SEP2025 through its usual
democratic process.

2 Background

2.1  The Surrey Environment Partnership (SEP) is a cross-Surrey forum that
seeks partnership approaches to waste management issues in Surrey.
The Council is represented at SEP by the Chair of this Committee.

Page 43



Environment and Safe Communities Committee  Agenda ltem 5
21 March 2023

2.2  SEP is non-binding. Individual authorities remain autonomous within
Surrey’s two-tier structure (boroughs and districts are Waste Collection
Authorities, and Surrey County Council is the Waste Disposal Authority).

2.3 ltis alegal requirement that two-tier areas must periodically produce a
Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy (JMWMS). SEP usually
produces a new JMWMS every four to five years. Such strategies are
legally required to include public consultation.

2.4 However, SEP has not generated a new JMWMS since 2015. This is
because we still await announcements from the national waste strategy,
first proposed in 2018:

2.4.1 Three elements of the national waste strategy will particularly affect
councils:

e Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR): aims to reduce
how much packaging councils must collect, and transfer more of
it from refuse to recycling bin. Some announcements have been
made but there remains a great deal of detail yet to be
announced. Government has stated that EPR will start on
1/4/24.

e Deposit Return Scheme (DRS): aims to independently recycle
cans and plastic bottles (and eventually glass bottles), reducing
what councils will collect. Some announcements have been
made but, again, there remains a great deal of detail yet to be
announced. Government had stated that DRS would start in
2023 but has recently revised this to 2025.

e Consistency of Collections (‘Consistency’): aims to tell
councils what recyclables we must collect, and how. And it
proposes that garden waste subscriptions should be removed,
or severely reduced. These proposals could radically alter the
nature, cost and performance of kerbside collections across
Surrey. No announcements have yet been made despite
repeated assurances from government that announcements are
imminent. SEP and other industry bodies continue to press
government for announcements.

2.5 As aresult of these significant issues remaining in abeyance, SEP has felt
it inappropriate to generate a new JMWMS until outcomes of the national
waste strategy are known. However, it is expected that the national waste
strategy outcomes will be known (and some starting to impact councils) by
2025. Therefore, SEP has developed SEP2025 as an ‘approach
document’ in the meantime.

2.6 It may be noted that, unlike a JMWMS, an approach document such as
SEP2025 does not require a public consultation.

Page 44



Environment and Safe Communities Committee

21 March 2023

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Full IMWMS’s have many specific actions that underpin their overarching
strategy aims. However, SEP2025 is an approach document only, that
contains only high-level partnership aspirations and broad workstream
themes:

High-level aspirations:

Broad workstream themes:

Considering how the
national waste strategy
might affect us.

Strategic direction for the
next three years, and a
longer-term vision for SEP
that will follow the waste
hierarchy and work towards
zero waste.

Work to drive down food
waste and plastic waste.
Work to reduce
contamination of recycling
bins.

Reducing refuse, especially food waste
thrown away in refuse bins; reducing fly-
tipping; reducing litter; promoting re-
use.

Reducing contamination of recycling
bins.

Understand greener vehicle options.
Support the development of waste
disposal infrastructure (although
developments in Epsom & Ewell seem
unlikely).

Work together to consider what
Consistency of Collections means for
Surrey councils (when announcements
are made), and how we can/should
respond.

As an ‘approach document’, SEP2025 does not itself propose specific
actions:

2.8.1 However, it may be noted that a summary of SEP’s current work
programmes for 2022/23 is included in the SEP2025 document at
Appendix 1, to give an idea of the kind of work undertaken by SEP.

2.8.2 SEP agrees its workstreams each year through the SEP Members
Group. Officers have recently been feeding into a review process to
consider SEP’s work programme for 2023/24.

SEP2025 was approved by the SEP Members Group (which includes the
Committee Chair as noted above) at its meeting on 23 November 2022. A
full copy of SEP2025 is appended to this report as Appendix 1.

Overall, officers consider SEP2025 a reasonable, appropriate document,
with supportable aims.

Risk assessment

Legal or other duties

3.1

Equality Impact Assessment

3.1.1 SEP2025 is an approach document only and therefore carries no
inherent equalities implications.

Page 45

Agenda Item 5




Environment and Safe Communities Committee  Agenda ltem 5
21 March 2023

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Crime & Disorder

3.2.1 SEP already considers fly-tipping and littering, and SEP2025
proposes that it should continue to do so.

Safeguarding

3.3.1 SEP2025 has no safeguarding implications.

Dependencies

3.4.1 An indirect financial dependency is discussed in section 4, below.
Other

3.5.1 Overall SEP2025 is a relatively simple, high-level document, with
reasonable content that relates to issues facing all Surrey councils.
SEP2025 does not seek to change the status of SEP, relative to the
Council. In itself, therefore, SEP2025 presents little risk.

3.5.2 As summarised in section 2.4, above, the national waste strategy
could significantly change how much waste, and of what type, the
Council collects, and how much it is paid to do so. SEP2025 should
help mitigate that risk through its proposed partnership approach to
understanding and generating solutions for those issues. This
approach worked well in 2015/16 when SEP put considerable effort
into joint working to navigate the EU Waste Directive. Doing so
greatly reduced the burden of legislative response required from
each individual council and allowed a clear peer review of
responses.

3.5.3 However, SEP2025 does contain targets that have yet to be clearly
justified. In particular, this is because we do not yet know what the
true effects of the national waste strategy will be (nor, indeed, when
they will take full effect). What is clear, however, is that SEP2025’s
modelling suggests that — even including predicted effects of the
national waste strategy — Surrey will not achieve the targets
proposed within the national strategy.

4  Financial Implications

4.1

4.2

SEP2025 itself carries no specific financial arrangements. However, three
indirect implications may be considered, as below.

The national waste strategy:

4.2.1 The national waste strategy could have significant financial impacts
from such things as how much councils get paid by EPR; how
material volumes change as a result of EPR and DRS; the costs of
being forced to change collection services, or limits on how much
we can charge for garden waste collections.

Page 46



Environment and Safe Communities Committee  Agenda ltem 5
21 March 2023

4.3

4.4

4.2.2 While SEP2025 cannot directly affect these things, its commitments
to work together to understand the national waste strategy
outcomes, and to formulate recommended responses, are likely to
be very useful. Previous such joint work has been very productive
and efficient.

4.2.3 ltis crucial that, when national waste strategy announcements are
made, the Council is well placed to understand and respond to
them in the most cost-effective way possible. Joint work as
proposed in SEP2025 will make that possible

SEP work programme:

4.3.1 Some SEP workstreams (see examples within Appendix 1) have
limited financial implications for individual boroughs and districts.
For example, work to develop recycling infrastructure at flats may
involve the purchase of bins and the application of staff resources.

4.3.2 But, in general, most SEP workstreams are either fully or
significantly funded by SEP. Thus, SEP2025, in itself, continues to
have only limited financial implications, and within existing Council
budgets.

SCC annual waste payments:

4.4.1 Each year, Surrey County Council (SCC) makes payments to each
borough and district in support of their waste operations. For
Epsom & Ewell, this currently amounts to some £120k per annum.

4.4.2 After the development of SEP2025, SCC announced that it would
make its annual waste payments to boroughs and districts for the
next three years (2023/24 — 2025/26) dependent on our support for
SEP2025. SCC proposed that we should generate action plans,
which would be scrutinised each year, and payments made
according to how much SCC believed each borough or district had
supported the aims and objectives of SEP2025 in that year.

4.4.3 It should be noted that this arrangement was proposed unilaterally
by SCC. It was never (and still is not) a part of SEP2025 itself, nor
was it proposed by SEP.

4.4.4 However, SCC’s proposal was significantly objected to by the SEP

Member Group. Consequently, SCC changed its proposal to a trial
system as follows:

Page 47



Environment and Safe Communities Committee  Agenda ltem 5
21 March 2023

e Year 1 (2023/24): SEP (not SCC) will agree annual action plans
with each borough and district. At the end of the year, outcomes
will be reviewed by SEP (not SCC) and any recommendations
for improvements for the following year will be discussed with
the boroughs and districts.

e Year 2 (2024/25): Again, SEP (not SCC) will agree annual
action plans with each borough and district. At the end of the
year, outcomes will be reviewed by SEP (not SCC) and any
recommendations for improvements for the following year will be
discussed with the boroughs and districts.

e Year (2025/26): Again, SEP (not SCC) will agree annual action
plans with each borough and district. At the end of the year,
outcomes will be reviewed by SEP. SCC may then — and only
then — consider any changes to its waste payments for 2025/26.
But it has committed to reviewing this with SEP at that time
before any decision is taken.

e Thereatfter, it seems likely that new payment structures will,
anyway, have taken effect as a result of national waste strategy
changes.

4.4.5 Past experience has clearly shown that SCC has the legal power to
unilaterally reduce annual waste payments if it so wishes. However,
after discussion at the SEP Members Group, it seems that SCC is
committed to the more reasonable course of action outlined above.

4.4.6 Officers have already liaised with SEP on an annual action plan for
Year 1 (2023/24). Officers are confident that the action plan
proposed is reasonable, and includes items that the Council would
be looking to support in any case.

4.4.7 In any event, it must be stressed that this arrangement is not an
outcome or recommendation of SEP2025 itself. Rather it resulted
from a separate, unilateral SCC proposal.

4.5 Section 151 Officer’s comments: The SEP2025 does not impact
existing council waste budgets for 2023/24 and aims to mitigate the
financial impact of the anticipated national waste strategy on districts and
boroughs. Finance officers will work with waste colleagues to understand
the finance implications of any future government announcements.

5 Legal Implications

5.1 SEPis a legally non-binding group. And, as already noted, SEP2025 is an
approach document only, with no legal power.

Page 48



Environment and Safe Communities Committee  Agenda ltem 5
21 March 2023

5.2

5.3

5.4

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.1

Legal Officer’s comments: Under section 32(1) of Waste and Emissions
Act 2003 waste authorities for a two-tier area must, at all times have for
the area a joint strategy for the management of (a) waste from
households, and (b) other waste that, because of its nature or
composition, is similar to waste from households. Section 32(2) of Waste
and Emissions Act 2003 requires the waste authorities for a two tier area
to keep under review the policies formulated by them for the purposes of
subsection (1).

The SEP2025 is not the Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy so
the local authorities are not required to carry out a public consultation
before formulating the policy.

SEP2025 is not legal binding document and does not create legal
obligations.

Policies, Plans & Partnerships

Council’s Key Priorities: SEP2025 supports the Council’s theme of
Green & Vibrant.

Service Plans: The matter is not included within the current Service
Delivery Plan. This is because the SEP2025 is an approach document
only.

Climate & Environmental Impact of recommendations: SEP2025 aims
to support the waste hierarchy of Reduce-Reuse-Recycle-Recover.
Therefore it supports the Council’s climate change ambitions.

Sustainability Policy & Community Safety Implications: By supporting
the waste hierarchy, SEP2025 supports the Council’s sustainability
ambitions.

Partnerships: SEP is a key partnership in terms of waste management.
The Council has played an active role within SEP for two decades.

Background papers

The documents referred to in compiling this report are as follows:

Previous reports:

o Previous JMWMS strategies have been presented to this Committee
for endorsement in 2006, 2010 and 2015 (with a modified version of
the 2015 JMWMS reviewed by the Committee in 2018).

Other papers:

Page 49



Environment and Safe Communities Committee  Agenda ltem 5
21 March 2023

o National waste strategy:
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/
uploads/attachment data/file/765914/resources-waste-strategy-dec-

2018.pdf

Page 50


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/765914/resources-waste-strategy-dec-2018.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/765914/resources-waste-strategy-dec-2018.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/765914/resources-waste-strategy-dec-2018.pdf

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

Environment and Safe Communities Committee
21 March 2023

SURREY ENVIRONMENT PARTNERSHIP - SEP2025

Appendix 1

Index:

Overarching SEP2025 approach document Pages 2 — 13
Summary of current SEP work programme 2022/23 Pages 14 — 18

Summary of responsibilities in a two tier waste authority such as Page 19
Surrey

Summary of SEP performance Pages 20 — 25

Page 51



SEP 2025

A partnership approach to waste
prevention and recycling

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

&, Surrey
Environment
Partnership

Wersion | Author Ciate Changes Distribution
1.0 Mick Meadows BMV22 | First draft SEF 2025 Siesring Group
and the SEP Officers Group
20 Mick Meadows | 27110022 | Amendments throwghout SEF Cficers Group
following partner feedback
30 Mick Meadows | 1871 1/22 | Minor amendments o give | SEP Members Group
additional inforrnation in
places
40 Mick Meadows 23711722 | Final draft following SEP Offficers and Members
feedback from the SEP Group
Members Growp
2

Page 52



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

Executive Summary

SEP (Surmrey Enviromment Parmership) continuowsly strives to imprese collection and
disposal services in Sumey and aspires to be among the best nationally on all key
permmance indicators.

Since the Rescurces and Waste Strategy (RaWS) for England was published in Decamber
2018, the Govemment has comsulted on a number of the strategy’s ambitions acoss a
range of subjects, the resulis of which will provide policy direction, which we eagery await.
The policy situation combined with Sumey's growing population, increasing mumbers of
households, and changes in the types of wasie produced by our residents means change is
a certainty. However, the exact direction of the change and the impact it will have on our
collection and disposal senices remains unclear.,

Whilst things are =0 uncertain, now is not the right time: to update the Joint Municipal Waste
klanagement Sirateqgy (JENWRIS) and consult with residenis, sowe need a shor-term
approach to help manage Surmey’s recyding and wasie in the most efficient, effective,
economical and sustainable way.

SEF 2025 has been developed to bridge the gap between our existing out-of-date JMWMS
and further clarity from central govermment. [t will reflect the vision of SEF and provide clear
strategic direction fior the partmership for the next three years to 2025 and a longer-tem
wision that will aliow SEF to continue to folkow the waste hierarchy and work towards zero
WEEIE

SEF 20325 is therefore a partnership approsch to wasie prevention and recycling, and has
been developed on behalf of all Sumey local authonties throwgh the SEF.

Background, policy, context and vision
Background

SEP is made wp of Surmey County Council (50C) and the 11 district and borough councils in
the county (as shown in Figure 1 below). it was formed ongimally as the Sumey Wasie
Fartnership (WP} in 2008 to owercome the challenges of two-tier senice delivery and aims
fo manage Sumey's recycling and waste in the most efiicient, effective, economical, and
sustamable way possible. 5EP's plan (the JMWRS) outlined our approach to achieving this.

| & altharme | Elmbridge

Runnymmade . Epsom & Ewell |
Surey Heath / | Reigate & Banstead |
Woking / Maole Valley
| Guldford Tarndricige |
Wavarlay

Figure 1: A map of Sumey showing the district and borough council areas

Page 53



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

SEF's curment JMWBRAS is meant to rum wntil 2024-25. However, it was last updated in 2015
and is therefore considerad to be 'out-of-date’. This was delayed due to the publication of
the RaWs, which proposes some fundamental chamges on how recyding amd waste
services will b= funded and delivered in the future (further explained below). The key policy
o support the RaWs is sill emenging and thersfore, the review has been postponed until
naticnal direction is clearer.

It was also decided to stop the annual monitonmng of the JMWMS's action plan at the end of
2017-18 and in its place anmual work programmes were developed instead. They have besn
im place each year throwgh to the latest programme for 2022-23. These have effectively
been the plan for working together in parnership since 2018-18. The cumrent SEF work
programme fior 2022-23 can be found in Annex 1.

The partnership name was changed from SWF to SEP in Apadl 2019 o reflect a growing
remit and desire to tackle wider environmental issues im Sumey.

Existing policy

A5 a group of councls providing recydding and waste management senvices, we have
several duties and responsibilities in accordance with relevant key legislation. These are set
out in Annex 2, which has been the legislative framework that we have operated under
durimg the last 30 years.

& key concept set out here is the "waste hisrarchy’, which ranks waste managemenit options
according to what is best for the emvironment. [t gives top pricrity o preventing wasie in the
first place. When wasie is created, it gives prionty to preparing it for reuse, then recycling,
then recovery' (this is where most of our residual waste goes in Surmey), and last of all
disposal, e.g., landfll, as shown in Figure 2 balow.

FREPAER G FOR RE-ULE

RECYCLIMG

BICOWERY

DIEFORAL

Fravanting wase & e prefamad oo, and sending wasls o Nardfi|
should be the lasl reso

Figure 2: Waste Framework Directive - five step waste hierarchy’

* this Inciudes anaerobic digestion, INGnaration with enangy recovery, gasifcation which produces energy (Tusis,
heat and power| and matenals from waste.

Page 54



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

New and emerging policy

Several policies are cumently being developed following the publication of the RaWs.
Laumched in December 2018, RaWs is the Govemment's plan to preserve matenal
resources by minimising waste, promaoting resource efficiency and moving towands a circular
economy. This will see products kept in use for as long as possible, making it easier to
reuse, repair, refurbish or recycle them (as illustrated in Figure 3 below).

Ritis parerials

rad TET

L T
t-‘ln:. fl'rl.-.\.
= Pes
*
A
= Cwcular
2 Tt fis .
v O 5
b= =
8 = =
. k-
= i
s, £
e ay fﬁ'
o Ld.-\.

Figure 3: A circular economy’”

RaWS combines actions the Government will take now with fimm commitments for the
coming years and gives a clear longer temn policy direction in line wath its 25 Year
— . B —

RaWS has set out several proposed policy reforms including foc

& |mecke the ‘polluter pays' principle through extended producer responsibility
(EPR) for packaging to ensure producers of products bear financial responsibility for
thie managemsent of the waste stage of a product's life cycle (except ground liter]
The Govemment has commitied o intreducing this from Apnl 2024, The key change
for local authorities is that they will be compensated for the necessary costs of
mianaging packaging waste from households, community recycling centres and sireet
bins. Defra is still working on the details of this with more clanty expected in 2023,

¢ |Introduce 3 deposit retum scheme (DRS) for drinks containers to reward residents
for bringing back bottles and encourage then mot o [iter them; thersby incraasing
thie quality and quantity of recycling. This is to include cans and plastic botiles of
between S0ml and 3l and will include containers sold both indvidually and as part of
a multipack. Glass bottles will ot be included. The scheme is still under
consideration for implementation from late 2024.

¢ |mprove recycing rates by ensuring consistency in household and business
recycling collections. This is still under consideration fior implemeniation from 2023-
24, but are likely to be delayed slightly o coincide with EPR. Key proposals include:

o Collection of the same dry recydable materials (glass, metal, plastic and

paper and card) as separately as possible (with consideration given to
circumstances where separate collection of recyclable waste streams may

Page 55



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

not be technically or economically practicable or may not provide a significant
ermarcmmental beneft).

o Collection of addiional dry recycling (metal jar lids, asrosols, cartons,
alurninium fizil and trays, alurminium tubes, and plastic films and pouches).
The Gowemment has so far stated that plasiic films and flexibles must be
collected by local authorities for recyding by 31 March 2027

o Collection of food waste separately at least once a wesk

o Collection of garden waste for free or for a masamum cost

o Senvice standards for collection amrangements and frequency.

# The abovwe proposals on recycling consistency ogether with EFPR and DRSS are mow
caollectively known as the collection and packaging reforms (CPR).

¢ Stimulate demand for recyded plastic by introducing a tax on plastic packaging
mianufactured in or imporied into the UK that contains less than 309 recycled
plastics. This came into effect om 1 April 2022

¢ Reducing the use of unnecessany single-use plastic (SUP) products including bans
on ikemns such as plastic straws, cotton buds, and dink stirers. These were banned
from 1 Ootober 2020 and supply stopped from 3 July 2021. Proposals to ban plastic
plates and cups, balloon sticks, polystyrene cups, expanded polystyrene food boxes,
trays and pots. If agreed these proposed bans would come into efect in Aprl 2023.

¢ The intreduction of a mandatory takeback scheme fior the collection and recyding of
fibre-based composite cups (disposable coffes cups). This is set o come in from
2024

The measures in RaWs alongside other key plans have set out strategic ambitions o be
achieved nationally over the next 30 years such as:

Imcrease the municipal recycling rate to 55% by 2025 and 65% by 2035,

Mear elimination of bicdegradable municipal waste to landfill from 2028,

Work towards eliminating food waste to landfill by 2030.

T8% recycling rate for packaging by 2030,

Business flaet cwners and cperators work towards 100% of vehicle fleets being zero
emission by 2030, or eadier where markets allow (COF28 ambition).

Mo more than 10% of municipal waste to landll by 2035

¢ A% reduction in per capita residual waste (excluding major mineral wastes) by 2042
from 2018 levels (proposed).

Whork towards eliminating avoidable waste by 2050,

Met zero domestic greenhouse gas emissions by 2050,

To that end, the Government introduced the Epvironment Act 2029 im November 20121 that
makes provision for most of these targets and gives them the legislative power fo infroduce
the measures abowe. The act will also make some changes to existing legislations to enable
consistency in collections.

Context

In Surey about £105 millicn® is spent each year collecting, managing and processing
recycling and waste. By increasing the amount of waste prevented and the proportion

¥ From the Local Authorfly Revenue Expendliure and Financing: 2020-21 Final Cufium, England

Page 56



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

recyded in the county it enables the cost of this service to reduce. It also benefits the
environment; kess raw matenals are required, saving enengy, emissions and protecting
natural resources.

Significant achievements have been made possible by working together as a parmershig;
the most notable being our improved recycling rate, which in 2010-11 was 48.4% (13"
highest nationally) and by 2020-21 was 55.1% (3™ highest nationally). Bore information on
cument perfomnancs can be found in Annex 3.

Drespite this, it's now the right time o revisit how we work together, considening some of the
challenges we face incduding the emerging policy to support RaWs. The direction of iravel is
mat clear on this yet but should become apparent over the next couple of years. 5o, while
re is mat he right ime to update the Surrey JAMNMS and consult with residents whilst
things are so umcertain, we do nesd a shor-term approach to help ws ensure we continue to
manage Surrey's recycding and waste in the most efficient, effective, economical and
susiainable way.

Therefore, our respanse to this emerging situation is o develop a partnership approach to
wasie prevention and recycling in Surmey for the next three years. This will look to, as a
minirnum, align with the Govemment's ambitions such as a 55% recycling rate by 2025 and
5% by 2035, Thers might be a requirement &5 a high perfomning county in England to go
beyond this. Im any event, we will strive to go beyond the national targets where possible
and begin o respond to decarbonisation by plamning changes to our vehicle fieets and
infrastructure to reduce emissions in the shorer term and mowve towards net z2ro emissions
im the lenger term. The approach will.

» Bridge the gap ahead of further darity from central Government.

Consider the anticipated changes that may result from the key emerging national
policy to support Ralys.

* Provide clear sirategic direction for the nesxt three years and a longer-term vision for
thie partmership that will continue to follow the waste hisrarchy and weork towards zem
waste” reducing emissions in the process. This will aid the future development of a
niew JMWEWME for Surrey post-2025.

* Enable us to drive down waste (paricularty food and SUP waste) and increase the
quality amd quantity of our recycling.

Chur wision

With the abowe in mind, we have developed the following vision staternent for SEP 2025:;

Chur vizion iz o efimimate avoidable waste and rewse, repair, recycle and recover any
waszie which cannof be eradicafed in fhe maosf econamical way.

Swrey's councilz will continue fo work i parfnership fo ensure our residents eceive fhea
highesat gualify of collecfion and disposal senvices possibie and encoursge owr residerts fo
reduce their howsshold wasfe and own their impact on fhe natural environment

Cur ambibion iz fo decanbonise our fleet and enswe that any new nfrasiuciure iz builf and
aperated o minimize carbon emissions.

i means that at least 90% of operatlonal waste has been reduced, reused, repurposad or recycied
compared to the original baselne.

Page 57



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

Key drivers and priorities
Drivers for change

We are at a crucal point now whiere we must reconsider how we can prevent more wasie
frorn arising. increase the quality and quantity of recycling and manages wasie in the long
termn to minimise the impact on the emdronment and move towards a crcular economy,
wihich is being driven by several pressures including:

Ermerding national ool

We will need fo align with emerging national policies (as outlined abowe) that will be
enshrined im legislation. While the policies aren't clear yet, they will fundamentally change
the way recyding and waste sendoes are funded and delivered. Therefore, we'll nesd to be
mindiful fior future service provision and well prepared o deliver any required changes
resuliing from new national policy in the best way possible.

Reducing carbon at pace

Mlost authorities in Swmey have dedared a cimate emengency and all have sat a target for
reaching net zerc emissions &5 individusl organisations. OF the 12 authonties in Sumey, nine
have agreed fo be carbon neutral crganisations by 2030, one authonty by 2035, and o by
2050. The climate change strategies and action plans that have been produced by Swmey
authonties recognise the carbon that recycling, and waste collection and disposal operations
emit. They also recognise the role that preventing and reducing waste, increasing reuse and
recyding and plamned changes to vehicle fleets and nfrastructure will play intackling climats
changs.

Increasing population amd number of households

The population of Sumey could rise to an estimated 1,308,500 by 2021, which could
translate into 34,000 new houses being constructed®. This will result in more recycling and
wastie and thersfors more pressure on our waste collection and disposal senices.

Budget pressures

Surey’'s authorities are facing unprecedeniad challenges because of reducad financial
support from the Govemment combined with an increasing population and greater demand
for our services. In addition, we are now experencing the cost-ofdiving crisis in which prices
for many commodities hawve risen sharply meaning senvices and infrastruciure projects will
cost more. This situation is being caused in part by a rise in inflation in the UK, in addition to
the economic impact of global isswes imduding the 2022 Russian invasion of Ukraine and
COVID-12 pandemic (which had already reduced economic activity across the county whilst
further increasing the support our communities need from wsh

inf fimitat

There is only one ensrgy from waste type facility (an Eco Park which includes a gasifier and
an anaerobic digestion® plant), a lack of recyding processing infrastructure and there are

* OMmce for Mational Statishics

& A process used bo convert waste Into energy
¢ A pIOCESS WK USes mICh-onganismes 1o break down biodegradable material

Page 58



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

lirnitations with transfer stations im the county such as the distance tofrom them for some
wasie collection and street dleansing rownds. This situation drives up cost and emissions,
which come from transporting waste over longer distances. Also, where we use thind party
sites to sort recycing, we are limited by what the cperator chooses to accept, which drives
up inconsistency and causes confusion for household waste collection regimes. Ower the
mext two to three years, SEP will need fo consider infrastructure options for future sendice
delvery that reflects the plans and sirategies across authonties and enables swccessful
attainment of the performance objectives and targets set out in this document.

Stallimg periormmance

The arnount of residual waste per househaold in Surey has been falling simce 2013-14,
hittimg a low of 450 8kg per household in 2018-20. However, the COVID-19 pandemic saw
this figure increase with more people being at home. While this is starting to decrease again
as we move away rom the pandemic, much more will need io be done to reach the
proposed national target of a 50% reduction on 2012 levels by 2042,

Also, recyding rates levelled off back in 2018-17, and Sumey’s perfomance has stayed
around the 55% mark. While this mesis the national tamget for 2025, significant invesiment
andfor changes to approach will likely be required to meet the B5% recyding rate target by
2035

A recent compositicn analysis (set out in Annex 3) highlighted there is still an estimated
20,000 fonnes of matenal im residual bins which can be recycled. So, the scope for
significant improvement on both residual wasie reduction and recyding does exist.

Key pricrities

The challenges set out above mean that the current sitwation is unsustainable. We nesd to
reducss costs where possible whilst increasing performance and still providing a highi-guality
senvice to Sumey residents. To that end, we belisve our key pricnties should be to:

Table 1: SEP 2025 priorities

Reduce all residual waste with a particular focus on food waste

To ensure focus is applied at the op of the waste hierarchy and to align with national
targets, we will focus on reducing residual waste by preventing it in the first place.
Comparsd to high perfoming authonties in England, Swumey has a much higher level of
residual waste, We will use the leaming gained from these authorities im our fubure work
programmes, and we will continue to engage with Sumey residents to reduce their waste,
especially food wasie

Promote and maximise reuse

To support the principle of a circular economy, we will seek to maximise opporunites to
keap products in wse for as long as possible through sharing, reuse, repair and
refurbishiment. This is an area we'll provide focus and pronty o by developing a reuss
sirategy for Swmey.

Increase participation in food waste recycling

Of course, it's best o reduce food waste where possible, but any food that is keft ower
should be composted’ or recycled, not only fior the environmental benefits, but because of
the money that can be saved, as it costs less than a third to recycle food waste than it

¥ This should be done In a completaly anciosed procass such 35 a food wasie digester as to not attract vamin

Page 59



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

does o dispose of it as rubbish. Our capture rate for food waste recyding in Sumey in
2021 was 43%, and as the composition analysis highlighted, there is =ill an estimated
50,854 tonnes of food waste in residuwal bins that cowld be recycled. Thersfore, a5 well as
frying to reduce food waste from ansing at all, increasing pariicipaton in food waste
recyding will confinues to be a pricnty for us.

Increase the quality and quantity of dry mixed recycling (DMR)

The recent composition anahysis highlighted that there are still owver 20,000 tonnes of
plastic, paper and card, glass and metals that could be collected for recyding. Increasing
the guantity collecied and reducing contamination of DMRE further (13,837 tonnes of
recyding was refected in 2020-21) will boost perfomance towards the 85% recyding rate
target and will improve the quality of miaterial and the prices we receive for selling it to re-
processors. Therefore, we will work fo improve the gquantity and guality of the DMR
recycling that we collect, which aligns wath emerging policy.

Decarbonise ouwr waste collection and street cleansing vehicle fleet

T align with our ambiticn o reach net zero emissions, we must look to reduce emissions
from our collection wehicle fieet and switch to altemative fuels®. Therefore, SEF will
develop a plam over the nest couple of years to look at how we can achieve this objective
o decarbonise our waste collection and street cleansing vehicle flest that recognises the
challenges that exist including affordability .

Support the development of infrastructure

We will consider what approprate infrastructure is required to power our wehicles and how
we create it, addressing Imitations with the lack of recycling and waste infrastnucture in
the county and work together o develop solutions that address owr collective needs.

Support optimised collections
We will help review collections, especially with the upcoming national changes inmind, so
services run in the most optirmal way from a finandal and emissions viewpoint.

Reduce fly-fipping
We will work with enforcement teams to help bring those who fiy-tip 1o justice, with the
longer-term impact of reducing fiy-tipping.

Reduce litter

We will develop a sirategy which sets out our approach to tackling Iitter, amd how we will
wiork with different groups to take advantage of any funding opporunities that arise o
reducs [itter.

The partnership approach to delivering our vision and priorities
Targets

We appointed Eunomia Research and Consulting to develop a keng-term waste fiow mcdel
for Surrey. The model was created to help us understand how far upcoming national
changes and the work we do will get us towards achieving national and existing local
targets. Workimg with Eunomia, we reviewed a range of different scenarios to enable us to
set reslistic targets for the nest three years (the monitoring percd of SEP 2025) that keep us

I This could Include renawable diesel, blodlessl, eleciric or hyimgen. Options appralsal to be determined.

10
Page 60



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

on track im the short term to meet longer term national targets. Our partnership targets are
set out in Table 2 below.

Table 2: SEP 2025 targets

SEP 2025 (monitoring period)

Measure 2021-22 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26

{unaudited)”
Fesidual wasie per 470,95 481 420 445
household (KG)
Recyecling rate (inc DRS) 54 43% HE% 5T% 58%
Food waste capture rate 43%" 48%""
DMR contamination rate 2.0% <5% <3% =3%
Waste to lamdfill 15.1% <% <3%" =3%

The targets s=t out abowe have factored in the following measures that we think will happsn
nationally and locally over this three-year period:

Mational measures

The SUP bans on plastic plates and cups, balloon sticks, polystyrens cups,
expanded polystyrene food boxes, frays and pots come in from Apnl 2023,

The implementation of EPR from 2024, throwgh a combination of mandatory
labellimg, consistency in collections and national communications campaigns, is
expecied (o increase caplure rates of recyclable packaging matenal.

It is expected that there will be: a change in waste composition due to EFR fee
micdulation and recyclability requirements when this comes in from 2025, There is
likely to be a shift from non-recyclable pots, tubs and frays and composite packaging
to reoyclable altematives, and some chamge from fliexible composites o mono-
miaterial flexdble polyethyens. There could be further changes in the recyclability of
‘other plastics"; more challenging formats (composite flexible packaging and tubes)
could also become recyclable.

The LK Govemment introduce an sdditional set of core materdals that must be
collected at the kerbside for recycing. This will result in kerbside collections of at
least cartons, aluminiumm foill and trays (from 2024 ), and filrn and plastic bags (from
2027

The UK Govemment introduce a DRS for plasiic bottles and cans from lake 2024,
whereby matenals will be =tumed via a separate nebeork, but the recycding rate is
apportioned fo local autharties.

Local measures

Food waste collectons will be rolled out to all flats in Sumrey where spacss and
operations pemit.

The food waste recyding and DMR contamination reduction intersemntion work will
continue to be developed and delivered by SEP in collaboration with Surmey’s
councils.

¥ Diata for 3 inanclal year Is confimmad and made avallable to e publc once Infomation has been valdabed by
the Waste DataFlow team and the Emvironment Agency. This usually happens on the following Decemiber.
¢ Figure from 2021 compastion analysts

* To pe measured when the nexd com

analysls Is camled out In 2024725

12 Ajigns with SCC's tanget set out In thelr waste disposal contract re-procurement

11
Page 61



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

o SEP will continue to encourage Sumey residents through muliple platforms to
participate in food waste recyding.

Strategic objectives and actions

Tio address ouwr pricrities above and meet our argets, we must deliver the work which is
described in the strategic objedtives and key actions in Table 3 balow.

Tabkle 3: List of strategic objectives and key actions

Strategic objective | Key actions

Deliver joint work ¢ Continued creation of annual work programmes that address
programmes that the key prorties of the partnership to reduce waste, increase
focus on parinership food waste recycling, reduce contamination to improve the
pricrities quality and quantity of DMR and decarbonise our vehicle fieet.

This will mowe to a new level of focus which will tie in with the
individual authaority delivery plans mentioned baloer.

¢ Develop an infrastructure and transport plan that enables us o
cornply with the RaWs and key emerging policy; and
decarbonise the fleet ideally by 2030 but in line with existing
local authorty policies.

¢ Deuvslop key countywide strategies for reuse and litter.

Setlocaltargets and | «  Develop and agree annual performance indicators for each
actions Surrey council that will contribute towards the overall
partnership targets, along with indhidualised delivery plans that
will enable the realisation of local and countywide targets.

Exploit further # Build on past work and look at opportunities to camy out joint
opportunities. to work processes where viable to procure required products (vehicles
jointhy and bins/containers) to introduce consistent collections as

defermined by emerging Govermiment policy.

Respond io policy o  Confinue to respond fo consultations held by Govermment on
proposed policy o ensure our collective views are heard and
that SEF 2025 remains aligned.

* Engage positively with industry groups such as the Association
of Directors of Emvironment, Economy, Flanming & Transport
[(ADEPT], The Local Authority Recycing Advisory Committes
[LARAC) and The Mational Association of Waste Disposal
Officers (MAWDO) to raise concems and share thoughts amd
ideas on future policy and s implementation.

Adopt best practice |« Continue to research top performing authorities in England that
are comparable to Surrey's authonties using rurality and
deprivation as a starting point, and overaying delivery factors,
and then feed this lzaming into the development of the above
anmual work programmes and individual delivery plans.

& Work with the fly-tipping enforcement teams to continue to
share and develop intelligence, knowledge and best practice.

12
Page 62



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

Monitaring

Progress against the targets, key actions including the annual SEF work progranmime and
hocal delivery plans will be monitored quartery. A standard template will be developed for
this, and it will be reporied back to the SEFP Officers and Members Group at their quarierhy
mestings.

Review

Targets and the work programmefindividual delivery plans will be reviewed annualby with
adjustments to targets made where necessary including adding new projects to the annual
SEFP work prograrnime and individual delvery plans, where required fo support target
achievemsant. This will be developed and agreed with the SEF Officers and Members
Groups.

Revision process

SEP 2025 is s=t o run fo 2025 At the start of 2025 (the final year for SEP 2025) we'll begin
wiork on developing a new Surrey JAMARIS. At this point we should have further darity from
Govemment on the way foraward following the impkementation of the RaWs measures which
are set o start from 2024-25. Once the Sumey JNWMS is drafted, consulied on, approved
and adopied, this will be our new plam for parmership working from 2026,

' Waste Framework Directive 2005, Image takan som Waste Frameyork DIECOve (Surnoa eyl
[ it USSR Lot e CIELIERE S EEERE.E LS A

=fL

13
Page 63



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

Surrey Environment Partnership

Work Programme
2022 - 2023

'?3 Surrey

(> V Environmt.ant
Partnership

Objectives

The focus for 2022-23 will be supporting the SEP priorities which are waste reduction, food waste recycling and reducing
contamination of dry mixed recycling. Activity will include making service improvements that ensure Surrey residents are enabled to
make the changes we are asking of them, as well as communicating and engaging with residents to influence their behaviour and
help them understand how their current behaviours impact the environment.

Work will also include providing the required data and insights to inform decision making and improve resident understanding of
what happens to their waste, as well as managing the partnership and defining the future waste strategy for Surrey.

The objectives are to

1. Develop and deliver initiatives to support the priority area of waste reduction, with a particular emphasis on food waste.
2. Develop and deliver initiatives to support the priority area of food waste recycling.

3. Develop and deliver initiatives to support the priority area of reducing contamination and improving the quality and quantity of
dry mixed recycling.
4 FEducate and encourage residents and their children to take action to reduce, reuse and recycle quality material

5. Develop and implement a new recycling and waste strategy for Surrey and associated delivery plans.

6. Further improve our use of data and insight in order to better inform decision-making and communication with partners and
residents.

7. Ensure partners are kept informed and the reputation of SEP continues to be protected and developed.

8. Manage the partnership effectively to ensure activities are delivered with approprate govemance and oversight.

9. Develop and maintain links with other groups and initiatives to ensure that our work remains relevant in the wider context.

10. Ensure that we have the capacity to be able to respond to new issues and opportunities as they arise.

14
Page 64



Program

me of activity

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

For each objective we have detailed below the activities for 2022-23. These will be reviewed regulary and updated as appropriate. Also included is how success will be
measured for each objective and the input required from partners to ensure successful delivery.

Objective 1: De:

Description

elop and deliver initiatives to support the priority area of waste reduction, with a particular emphasis on food waste reduction

How will success be measured?

Partner responsibilities

Confinued management of he Rethink Waste scheme currantly baing
trialled in Elmbridge. The trial will run until March 2023, but it will be
evaluated from November 2022 to establish whether it should be rolled
out more widely within the county in 2023-24.

Reduction in residual wast= tonnags in
Elmbridge, and resident sign up and
engagement with the scheme.

Elmbridge Borough Counci:
Promation of scheme.

reduction online
toolkit

waste reduction tools and national initiatives.

Communications to signpost residents to the resources — paid prometion
to be coversd by campaign budget included under objective 4.

Compost bin Run and promote a series of time-limited ‘sales’ which offer residents the | Sales of compest bins and hot All partners:
and hot opportunity to buy a discounted compost bin or hat composter to manage | composters and return on Use cor toolkits to share messages and
composter their garden and food waste at homa. from tonnage diverted promote sales.
“sales’
Food waste Carry out a review of any organisations that operate within Surrey which Identification of organisations who are All partners:
reduction we could partner with to promate food waste reduction and reuse, willing to partner with us 1o reduce food | Provide details of any known organisations that could
partnerships promating a local circular economy for any food waste which cannotbe | waste. be approached.
prevented.
Food waste Create a new section of the SEF website featuring links to existing food | Web page views plus communications | All pariners:

reach and engagement.

- Add link to new section to own websites.
Use toolkit to share

and promote the new online resource.

Activity

ecycling

Objective 2- Develop and deliver initiatives to support the priority area of food waste

D

How will success be measured?

Food recycling
atflats

Intraduce food recycling at flats where there is currently no collection.
including providing bins. liners and communication materials to engage
residents in the new service.

Number of properties a naw food waste
service is provided to.

Menitoring of fill lavels to assess
participation in new senvices

Partner responsibilities

All partners:

Provide site details.

Review and approval of communication
materials

Carry out dalivery of faod bins and caddiss
Carry out crew training (whare bins are differant
from current) including testing on vehicles
Work with contractor / DSO supervisors o plan
new collection routes

Resolve any collection problems.

Briafing of local customer service team and
members.
Provide safe storage of bins [ associated items.

Re-launch existing food recycling services at flats with improved bins,
signage. liners and communication materials to engage residents in the
re-launch and increase use of the service.

Mumber of properiies covered.
Comparisen of pre-monitoring and post-
meonitoring fill levels and caddy orders to
assess increases in parficipation.

All partners:
Provide site details.

Review and approval of communication
materials

Carry out delivery of food bins and caddies.
Carry out crew training (where bins are different

from current) including testing on vehicles.

Resolve any collection problems.
Briefing of local customer service team and
mambers

Provide safe storage of bins / associated items.

Food waste
recycling
targeted
interventions

Roll out of interventions which were successful in previous trials, i.e., use
of no food waste stickers on residual bins combined with
communications delivered through letterbox. Will be targeted at low
performing households, identified via in-cab exceptions data if available.,
or round tonnage! local operational knowledge.

Increase in resident participation in the
service and/or tonnages depending on
data availability.

All participating D&Bs:

Discussion and agreement of data to be used/
areas io targeted.

Review and approval of intervention materials.
Briefing of local customer service team and
mambers

Provision of any caddies or food bins requested

Explore adding
‘no food waste”
o new residual
bins

Explore options for all DEBs to include a no food waste' message on all
new residual waste bins. to direct residents to use the food waste
recycling service.

Identifying a practical approach that can
be implemented to include a ‘no food
waste’ message on new residual waste
bins.

Provide input to discussions of options.

Review Carry out a review of current policies for providing replacement food bins | Reaching agreement on an approach Provide input to discussions of options.
replacement and caddies and assess options to make them easily available to that could align policies to make food

food bin residents. bins and caddies easily available to

policies rasidents.

Investigats Investigate and trial options for introducing ragular cleaning of communal | Carrying out trials and producing an Provide input to discussions of optians.
regular flats bin | food waste bins. to resoive hygiene issues and make the bins more options appraisal with a cost benefit Partners participating in tnals:

cleaning appealing for residents to use. analysis for introducing regular bin _ Provide suitable site details.

cleaning.

Assist in co-ordinating with timing of collections.
Briefing of local customer service team and members,

Objective 3- De
Activity

Description

elop and deliver initiatives to support the priority area of reducing contamination and improving the quality and quantity of dry mixed recycling

How will success be measured?

Partner responsibilities

Contamination
reduction at
flats

Continuing the rollout of measures to reduce the contamination of
communal recycling bins at blocks of flats with significant issues. This
will include reviewing bin capacity, introducing reduced aperiure lids and
locks or providing ane-off replacements of broken locks, updating
signage and providing communication materials to encourage residents
to recycle the right items.

Mumber of proparties covered.
Comparison of pre-monitoring and post-
menitoring cbservations of
contamination levels to assess
improvements in material quality.

All partners:
- Provide site details and attend site visits where

required.

Review and approval of communication

materials.

Carry out delivery of DMR bins.

Carry out crew training {where bins are different

from current), including testing on vehicles

Resolve any collection problems.

Briefing of local customer service team and

members

Provide safe storage of bins / associated items.

Contamination
interventions

Continuing the irial of targeted letiers 1o wha ¥
contaminate. Taking leamings from trials started in the joint contract
areas and camying eut further trials in other autharities.

Reduction in the number of repeated

contaminators.

‘Al pariicipating D&Bs:
Provide in-cab lock out data as required and
agree address lists to target

Review and approval of communication
materials.

Briefing of local customer service team and members

Scope options to procure a third party to cary out monitoring or
interventions. This could potentially involve monitoring whether collection
crews are correctly identifying and not emptying contaminated bins or
tagging bins that are contaminated.

Summary of actions taken by individual
authorities to improve crew performance
in response to monitoring results. This
may include the results of locally
managed spot checksimonitoring

All participating D&Bs:

Provide training/guidance to contractor on the
expected practise for locking out bins.
Frovide reund data on streets to target.

15

Page 65



Agenda Item 5

Appendix 1

showing any improvements to
performance.

Reduction in rejected loads and reduced
contamination levels.

- Brefing of local customer service team and
members.

- To act on the results of monitoring, to deliver
any required local improvements e.g.. crew
training.

To conduct spot checks following the delivery of any
improvemeants and share the results within three
months

Objet e 4: Educate and encourage residents and their children to take action to red reuse and recycle quality material

Description

How will success be measured?

Partner responsibilities

‘Year-long communications campaign badged under a new theme ‘Own
“Your Impact'.

To include the following specific campaign phases to support SEP's

sorting game

Independent research to evaluate the
impact of the campaign and service
guides with residents. This will lock at a
range of measures such as awareness,

All partners:
- Use campaign toolkits to share messages with
residents and staff through own channels.
- Share postsitweets from SEF social media

Communications to encourage and increase usage of the tosl, app and
game undertaken as part of the Own Your Impact campaign.

Service guides
and calendars

priority areas: message penetration, relevance, channels.
— 1 x food waste reduction. persuasiveness, engagement and
_ 2 x food waste recycling. claimad behaviour change.
Cwn Your — 1 x contaminaticn reduction/ recycling education B o _ )
~ 1x festive season contamination reduction. Digital channel metrics including website
Impact visits and social media reach and
ssmpaign Ongeing communications activity to encourage and motivate residents to | Sngagements (e.g., shares, retweets,
reduce waste, including single-use plastics and to reuse or repair where | Video views and comments).
possible. This will link o national awareness daysfweeks and evenis
where relevant.
Support and promotion of national WRAP initiatives:
— Recycle Week (2022 theme TEC).
— Food Waste Action Week (reduction focus).
Sorrey Ongoing management. updates and improvements to the search tool. Incraase in the number of searches and | All pariners:
Recydies app .?nd waste sorting garr!e nfmch aim to educat_e res_ldents and downloads of the Surrey Recycles - Promation of the search tool, app and waste
search tool, app specifically reduce contamination of mixed recycling bins. search m\ and app and plays of the sorting game.
and waste ’ waste sorting game. Providing updates when services or acceptance criteria

changes.

Creation and distribution of printed annual recycling guides tailored for
each area but based on a consistent template. Optional calendars also
included where requested

Communication activity on social media to highlight the recyciing guides
to residents and encaurage them to read and retain them.

Independent research to evaluate the
impact of the campaign and service
guides with residents. This will look at a
range of measures such as awareness.
retention and message penetration.

Social media reach and

All participating D&Bs:
—  Providing content for guides
— Reviewing and signing off content.
— Providing residential postal addresses where
relevant
Use of communications

Digital metrics including website page

Ongoing management, development and promation of the SEP website Al partners:
- and social media channels on Facebook, Twitter, Instagram and views, social media reach and - Adding relevant SEP website links to own
SEP digital ‘YouTube. Budget also covers subscriptions to a photo library for design | Sngagemants websites,
chamnels use, film editing and animation tocls, social media tsystem | (iikes i d etc) Sharing centent frem SEP channals on own channels.
and e-r " software. and video views
Primary Promotion of SEP website educational resources to primary school Website visits and downloads of All partners
. teachers resources. Promotion of the resources.
schools’
5
education Development of additional new resources for the 2022/23 academic year
programme: to add to the SEF website.
Objective 5: Develop and implement a new recycling and waste strategy for Surrey and associated delivery plans
Activity Description How will success be measured? Partner responsib
Produce and submit parinership responses to possible further Agree and submit responses ahead of All partners:
Key waste consultations on the Government's Resources and Waste Strategy deadlines. * Review and input into SEP responses where
policy including a new written assessment process for separate recycling necessary.
consultation collection, minimum service standards, recycling credits, propesals from Produce individual response whers required using the
responses the Waste Prevention Programme for England. and any other waste SEP responses as a template.
related consultations that may arise throughout the year.
Development of ‘SEF 2025: A parnership approach to waste prevention | All pariners endorsing and adopiing Al pariners:
and recycling’, which will look as @ minimum to align with the SEFP 2025 by March 2023. - Inputinto the design of SEP 2025.
Government's ambitions such as a 55% recycling rate by 2025 and 65% ) . Enderse and adopt SEP 2025,
by 2035 and strive to go beyond this. and begin to respond to Delivery of the associated targets.
decarbonisation by planning changes to our vehicle fleets and
infrastructure to reduce emissions in the shorter term and move towards
net-zero emissions in the longer term. SEP 2025 will:
ii:i:j:mp + bridge the gap ahead of further clarity from central government:
=pprosch o » take into account the anticipated changes resulting from the key
waste emerging national policy to support the Rescurces and Waste
prevention and Strategy:
recydiing + provide clear strategic direction for the next 3 years and a longer term
vision for the parinership that will continue to follow the waste
hierarchy and work towards a net- zero waste trajectory. This will aid
the future development of a new Jaint Municipal Waste Management
Strategy for Surrey post 2025; and
#* enable us to drive down waste (particularly food and single use
plastic waste) and increase the quality and quantity of our recycling
To review and document the existing infrastructure, its capacity and Al pariners endorsing and adopting the | Al parners:
usage. delivery plan by September 2023 - Input into the review and documentation of
existing infrastructure. it's capacity ad usage
Infrastructure & | Te consider future infastructure requirements for managing waste in Defivery of the ::;5‘::‘;‘1?’92“ ==t . fﬂ”:u't’: e g i =IO uture reaurements.
Tra!'\spon accordance with the national Resources and Waste Strategy and and disposal fieet and to understand supporting
Delivery Plan | develop a delivery plan. infrastructure needs.
- Endorse and adopt the agreed final delivery
To develop a plan to decarbonise the collection and disposal transport plan.
fieet and establish the supparting infrastructure requirements.
Agree a pathway towards formalising Surrey Environment Partnership Greater ransparency of decision- All pariners:
Future governance and approvals processes. making. - Input into development of proposals.
governance Provide information on individual authority governance
amangements SEP has delegated authority to make g and app P 3
decisions on matters such as budget
3

16

Page 66



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

agreement and approvals for strategy
consultations.

Funding
mechanisms

Carry out a review of options to introduce a short-term financial incentive
to increase food waste recycling andior reduce contamination, prior to
any new burdens funding from government, as part of the SEP funding
mechanism. This would recognise the additional cost to D&Bs of
expanding services.

Agree SEP and WCA funding arrangements for 2023-24 onwards in light
of changes that will arise from the national Resources and Waste
Strategy.

Reaching agreement on a financial
incentive to infroduce.

All partners:
- Provide input to discussions of oplions.
SCC:
Agree and funding g for
20232-24 in time for individual authority budget setting

cyeles, with the aim of establishing a financial
mechanism that will remain year-on-year until further
funding arangements develop through government
policy.

Support the
development of
disposal
contract
requirements

Support SCC in developing the requirements for new waste disposal
amangements for 2024 onwards to ensure a strategic fit with the future
direction of travel

Ensure sufficient provision and management mechanisms within the new
disposal contract(s) to ensure quality data is issued and updated in a
timely manner and cansistent format.

SCC are supported to ensure that future,
waste disposal arrangements are
aligned with the strategic direction of the
SEF.

The contractor{s) provide quality and
reliable data within timescales required

SCC:
- Consultation with partners as appropriate

Districts and Boroughs:

Provide feedback on proposals.

Objective & Further improve our use of data and insight in order to better inform decision-making and communication with p

rtners and residents.

incorporates up to date data regarding materials collected by third
parties.

Activity Description How will success be measured? Partner responsi 5
Use up to date data to provide analysis and insights to current trends Members and officers are well informed | All partners:
and performance against targets, including recydiing performance, regarding strategic and operational - Review performance repons and provide
i and contract perfo . performance. feedback on format.
Performance Help identify opportunities for performance
reporting Produce quarterly performance reports for SEP members and officers. improvement.
Strategic decision-making processes
are based on a robust and transparent
evidence base.
Management of the SEF waste data system, including contract Data gathering from all parties becomes | All partners:
management and managing the supply of weighbridge data. fully automated, without need of further | Support the introduction of new processes and
development. reporting data issues
Data Management of third-party contractor data so that performance reporting
management

What happenad

Creation of report and infographic highlighting what happens to the
waste collected in Surrsy.

Resident engagement with "What
happensd to Surrey's waste’ repert (2.g.
website visits, social media

All parinars:
Promotion of the report! sharing of
communications

Suceessful procurement &
implementation of new system

:a;"e"y B Communieations activity to share the report findings with residents. engagements). Surrey County Council: _ )
Help with responding to media requests relating to
waste disposal.

Develop options for when Open Sky contract ends in February 2023 All partners:
* Undertake analysis of the OpenSky confract and data system - Engagement of officers in the review of
performance, and future development reguirements. Report identifying the outcome of the OpenSky and the future options.
Complete an appraisal of the options to manage data following the review of the OpenSky contract and the
Future data end of the cument contract, with support of D&Bs and SCC. potential options for the end of the
management s Underake procurementiimplementation of the chosen option to contract.
system ensure that there is no degradation of data availability / analysis.

A

Objective T: Ensure partners are kept informed and the reputation of SEP continues t
ctivity i

be protected and developed

Description

How will success be measured?

Partner responsibilities

g and pond to madia from local and trade media. drafting Positive media coverage None
building the responses and liaising with pariners if appropriate. Nominations for awards.
reputation of Involvement in industry/Government
SEP Generate coverage in key trade media (local Surrey media engagement | panels.
will be undertaken as part of the Own Your Impact campaign).
|dentify, draft and submit entries for key award schemes to highlight the
work being done in Surrey.
Keeping Monthly email updates detailing progress, outcomes and upcoming Pariner feedback. Al partners:
partnars activities in the SEP programme. Share information with intemnal stakeholders.
informed
An end of year report prepared for the June meeting eycle and an Annual
Review of activity and outcomes created and published on the SEP
website following release of Defra waste statisties
Creation of quarterly Environment Matters email newsletter and
distribution to all members and senior officers in pariner authorities.
Member Develop and deliver a programme of seminars on recycling and waste Parner feedback. Help design and deliver seminars where required.
seminars for all members scross Surre:

Description

appropriate governance and oversight

How will success be measured?

Partner responsibilities

governance

Agenda planning in consultation with SEP Member and Officer
Chairmen

Administration of all the SEP member and officer mestings, including
bocking meeting venues, dispatch of papers and minute taking

Smooth running of partinership
govemance processes.

Attendance at relevant meetings.

17

Page 67




Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

Financial Meonthly budget monitoring processes and production of quarterly reports | Timely and accuraie reports available | All pariners:
management | for partners. for parners to review. - To invoice for services within appropriate
timescales to enable effective and efficient
Acministration of Surey wasts financial isms payments and ¥ are made in a timely manner. budget managament
administration of recyeling credits payments for arganisations in the — To support the delivery of the actions set outin
Surrey (fumiture) re-use network. i
the savings plan.
Identification of potential savings opportunities, service effi and lop and approval of a savings
budget reductions. plan for 2023-24 and delivery of actions
set out in the plan.
Programme Develop work programme proposals. Ensuring projects and other work have All partners:
management an agreed plan to work from. — Input into planning and help delivery of projects
Manage the SEP work p for 22-23 by a ing a process and other work where required.

to plan and design projects and other work that the partnership has
agreed to.

Monitor and report against progress with delivery to SEP partners an a
quarterly basis.

Providing accurate and informative
updates on a quarterly basis.

- Review reports and ask for additional

information where necessary.

Objective 5. De

elop and maintain links with other groups and initiatives to ensure tha

t our work remains relevant in the wider context

up of officers from each Surrey autharity.

happening across Surrey and issues

Description How will success be measured? Partner responsibilities
Provide admi support to the £ Group, which is made | Pariners are kept up to date with what is | All pariners - relevant officers 1o aftend mestings.

Group can be dealt with as they arise.
Attend meetings and monitor updates from groups such as ADEPT, Good relationships built with industry MNone.
Waste industry | South East Waste Parinership Managers, NAWDO and LARAC. and authority colleagues.
groups Insights and intelligence gained from
indusiry experts.
Suriey Comms | Atiend meetings to share details of SEF work programme and keep Use of toolkils! sharing of messages by | All pariners:

Group

infarmed about other countywide communications wark being
undertaken

Share toolkits for upcoming SEP activities via Surrey Comms Group for
partner communications teams to use.

Planning
Officers

pariner communications teams.

- Encourage communications teams to suppart

and share SEP messages.

Liaise with planning officers to ensure that guidance on bin storage and
access is provided to developers.

Best practice shared and consistent
guidance used by authorities.

Districts and Boroughs,

Provide case studies and best practice

examples.

appropriate.

Liaise with planning officers in their authorities
Publish guidance on websites where

d opportunities as they arise.

1] iption How will success be ? Partner ities Budget
risic and Rapid response to any crises or issues that arise during the year. To be determined by the natursofthe | To be determined by the nature of the | Coversd by
e crisis or issue and the response erisis or issue and the response underspends
required. required. or reserves as
management ;
appropriate.
Maximising Allocate resource to research, develop or deliver new opportunities that | To be determined by the naturs of the | To be determined by the nature of the | Covered by
opportunites | emerge during the year. opportunity. opportunity. underspends
or reserves as
appropriate.

%

Surrey
Environment

Partnership

sumeyep.org.uk

18

Page 68

10



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

Annex 2 - Duties and responsibilities in accordance with relevant
key legislation

¢ Environmental Protection Act 1990. This is the main legislation that has covered
waste management for the last 30 years. Key responsibilities include (but are not limited
to):

o A duty to provide a domestic waste collection service to households. Local
authorities can also offer collection services to businesses for which they can
charge. This is exempt from VAT.

o A duty to provide domestic waste disposal and provide the necessary facilities for
homeowners to dispose of their own refuse.

o And a duty of care to handle waste responsibly.

» EU Landfill Directive 1999. This set minimum standards and targets to reduce reliance
on landfill as a disposal option.

* Waste and Emissions Trading Act 2003. The JMWMS requirement sits under this. It
sets out that in a two-tier area, local authorities have a legal requirement to have a joint
strategy for the management of recycling and waste from households. This legislation
also states that the strategy must be kept under review, and any significant future
revisions will require public consultation.

* Waste Framework Directive 2008. This includes basic concepts and definitions related
to waste management, such as definitions of recycling and waste, and a legally binding
five-step waste hierarchy.

» Waste (England and Wales) Requlations 2011, 2012. This legislation chiefly
transposes the requirements of the 2008 EU revised Waste Framework Directive into UK
law. A key part of the regulation is to prioritise recycling over disposal. Local authorities
are required to have regard to the waste hierarchy (above) in the preparation of waste
development frameworks including local development plans.

» Controlled Waste Regulations 2012 - Classifies waste according to household,
industrial and commercial for the provisions of the Environmental Protection Act. Sets
out where charges for the collection or disposal of certain types of non-domestic
household waste can be made.

» MRF Regulations and Code of Practice 2014 - The main aim of the regulation
(implemented via the Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) (Amendment)
Regulations 2014) is to improve transparency on material quality in the supply chain,
through provision of accurate information on contamination levels.

19
Page 69



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

Annex 3 - Current performance and waste composition

Current performance

Recydling and wasie parfomnancs im Sumey is currently monitored by measuring the amowunt
of household waste generated within the county and how much of it is either recycded,
recovered or sent to landfll. The most recent revision of the Sumey JMARSE gawe
periomance data up to and including 2013-14, which showed that:

# The guantity of household waste generated in Sumey decreased by 8% from 583,518
tonnes in 2006-07 to 532,773 tonnes in 2013-14.

# The proporion of household waste that was recycled increased from 31% in 2008-7
to 52% im 2013-14.

# The amount of rubbish sent to landfill declined dramatically from 7% im 2006-07 o
11% in 2013-14.

# The amount of rubbish sent for energy recovery went from 2% in 2008-7 to 38% in
2013-14.

Since 2013-14, the total amount of household waste generated in Sumey has continued to
fall, reaching a low of 507 428 tonnes in 2018-18 (a 5% reduction from 2013-14). In 2020-21
it increased significantly to 538,777 tonnes as shown im 1 below. However, this large spike
comelated with the comnavirus pandemic and more people being at home. Provisional data
for 2021-22, cumently b=ing audited by Defra ahead of publication in December 2022, shows
that household waste decreased to approximately 520,000 tonnes.

E00,000
S00,000
400,000
300,000

210, 000

A4 201415 AMSMe AT ANTHE J01aMD 1930 P02
m Househiold waste sent to landf
B Housshold waste sent for energy recovery
B Housshold waste sent for reuse, recycling or composting

Figure 1: Household waste treated in Surrey from 2013-14 to 2021-22

20
Page 70



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

Betsmen 2013-14 and 2016-17 there was a steady increasa in the proportion of household
wiasie that was recycled each year, reaching a peak at 57.7% in 2016-17. From this point
forward, SCC lost markets for recycling carpets and rigid plastics, and the ability to compost
autumn kaf lider from street cleansing. Also, standards applied by the Environment Agency
around what could be recyded began to tighten at this time with re-processors focussing
meare on quality, and not quantity, and demanding material with less contamination, which
l=d to more recycling being rejected by maternals recoveny facilities (MRFs). Furthemore,
Sumey had already realised most of fhe benefits associated with changes to recycing
sarvices such as the rollout of separate food wasie colleciions from households, which has
been provided by every Sumey authorty since around 2012-13. With the above in mind,
Surmey's recycling rate has fluctuated, but has remained around 55% for the last four years
(Figure 1}. Provisional data for 2021-22 indicates an unaudited recycling rate of 54.4%.

We have continued to reduce the amount of rubbish sent to landfll {Figure 1), hitting bows of
around 4% in 20017-18 and 2020-21, atthowgh it has fluctuated arcund an average of G - 796
Howewer, provisional data for 2021-22 indicates that i has gome up to an estimated 15.1%.
This was due o operational shutdowns at facilties used to treat Surrey's nubbish and a
reduciicn in the amount of waste that was sent to facilities in BEurcpe.

The ammiount of residual household waste colleciad per household in Surrey has besn falling
simce 2013-14 hitting & low of 450.9kg per househaold in 20159-20 (Figure 2). However, thera
wias a large spike in 2020-21, taking it up to 478.1kg per housshold, but again this comelates
wiith the coronavinus pandemic and more pecple being at home. The unaudited data for
2021-22 mow puts this at 470.8kg per housshold.

5130

SO0 4537
479.1
4= 4704 47048
4525
450 4516 450
4410
4]
40K

0154 21415 201816 HIaMT 20178 2089 201%20 P01 20322

Figure Z: Residual houwusshold waste per household (kg) in Surrey from 2013-14 to
2021-22

The amount of household waste collected per person in Surmey has also been falling since
2013-14 (Figure 3) hiting a low of 423_3kg per person in 2018-18. Again, thers was a lamge
spike shown here in 2020-21, taking it up to 448 Zkg per person, but again this comelates
with the coronavinus pandemic and more pecple being at home. The unaudited data for
2021-22 indicates that this has dropped to 433.7kg per person.

21
Page 71



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

4700

455.0
4651 .6
4500
431.6
4500 4432
4390
4400
4337
4300 4356
4233 4240

4200

4100

4000

A4 201415 201516 200617 ATHE 201819 1920 202021 2021522

Figure 3: Collected household waste per person in Sumey from 201 3-14 to 2021-22

In 2015-18, data began to be collected on contamination of dry mized recycling ([DMR)
following the introduction of legislation that required Materal Recovery Faciliies o sample
material being delivered. Figure 4 shows a large spike in 2018-19, which was when data was
consistently reported for all DEBs, as it was limited before this. Since then, SEF has worked
io drive down contamination, the effects of which can be seen in 20M18-20 and 2020-21.

140,002 18%
o m Kerbside DMR = Contarmination
145
120,000 4%
12%
100,000
10%
£0.000
2%
60,000
8%
40.000 4%
201,000 9
0 0%

1516 2018707 201718 H11ang 20820 202021 2012

Figure 4; Contamination of DMR in Sumey from 201516 to 2021-22

22
Page 72



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

How we compare with others

Defra publishes perfomance data on an anmual basis for each local suthonty in England.
Table 1bekow shows Surrey's position in a league table with all cther local authonti=s in
England in relation to perfomance data on recyding rates, residual waste per household,
and collected housshold waste per person for 2020-21.

Takle 1: Position in the Defra league table for 2020-21

Authority % recycled, | Rank in Residual Rank in | Total Rank im
reused or the house- the house- | the
composted | league hizsld league | hold leagque

table waste per | table waste | table
house- per
hiold (kg) PEFSOn
{ka)

Disposal Authorities Only (owt of 20}

Sumey County 55.1% 3rd 4701 ath 440 2 1Tth

Council

Waste Collection Authorities Only {out of 308)

Elmbridge Borough f4 5% ATth 4601 101st 240 5 264 th

Council

Epsiom and Ewell F3T% 43rd 447 TTth 3883 128th

Borough Council

Guidford Borough 53.8% 15¢th 3Bo2 3nd arar 102nd

Council

Mole Valley District Al 6% 25ith 4726 5 Fath 437 25Gth

Coundcil

Feigate and Banstead | 53.2% Hist 4132 40th 683 B2nd

Borough Council

Runnymeds Borowgh | 48.0% TiEth 41149 4Tth 3B A=t

Council

Spelthome Borough 43 4%, 10 2nd 457 BEith 3608 A5t

Council

Sumey Heath Borough | 61.3% Hth 649 Znd 3871 155¢th

Council

Tandridge District Qo5 10th arog Zath 3978 157t

Coundcil

Wawerley Borough Ay 0% 2 3BB Y Jist apiz 140t

Council

Woking Borough fd 3% 4\rth 434 5 B&ith 408 2 1808

Coundcil

Sumrey has one of the best rates of recycling, reuse and compositing at 55.1% (3™) and
residual waste per household at 470 1kg (8™) of all disposal authorities in England. However,

it ranks arourd mid-Ekle for landfill usage (14™) and collected household waste per person
(17"

Landfill rates are also provided, but this can only be compared by disposal authaority. In
2020-21, Swrrey ranked 14% cut of 30 disposal authorities with a landfill rate of 3. 8%,

Mizst waste collection autharties in Swrrey (B out of 11) rank n the top 50 for recyding.,
reuse and composting performance with Surrey Heath Borough Coundl placed at fifth.

23
Page 73



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

However, performance on residual wasie is less encouraging with just over half (8 out of 11)
place in the top 50 for residual household waste per household with the rest between 585
and 101*. Only one authority of 11 is in the top 50 for collected household waste per person
with the rest between 92™ and 264,

In summary, while recycling peformance is mostly encouraging, residual waste volumes are
high compared o other authonties in England. To that end, there is more that can be done o
improve performmance in Surmey. We hawve looked at the top authornities in England that are
comparable to Surmey's authonties in terms of ruraity and deprivation to see what we can
l=am from them, and this thinking has been incorporated imito the key actions referred o in
the section on the partmership approach to achieving our vision, objectives and targets
im the main SEF 2025 approach document.

Where our recycling and waste goes

Surmey's residents have a keen interest in what happens to their moycling and waste with
previous research suggesting that increased transparency around what happens to recycling
and waste once collected can positively affect recyding behaviours. A report, What
Happened o Sumey's Waste, 2020021, is available on ZEF's websie. In summary, Figurns
below shows that of the 5308 777 tonnes of housshold recyding and waste generated in
Surrey im 2020-21, 7E.299% of it remained in the UK, 15.7% was ireated in Eurcpe (langely
Gemany and the Methedands) and 7.4% was trealed oulside of Eurgpe (largely India).

Of the 287 408 tonnes of recyding collected in 2020-21, 83.4% was processed in the UK,
3.1% in BEurope and 13.3% outside of Eurcpe.

Oif the 242 368 tonnes of rubbish collected in 2020-21, 69.2% was treated in the UK with the
remaiming J30.5% treated in Europe.

G 55.1% of waste collecied was recycked

F-fis T6.9% of washe remainid in thi UK
ahy 83 4% of recyciing
L7 608.2% of rubbish
=
o r-?‘ 13.7% of vwasle wes Ireated in Ewope
) A 3.1% of recycling -
A 30.6%% of nubbesh
il -

‘abed eppered be Bsre s wende, ST
T.4% of wasie was ireated oulside of Europe
13.3% of recycding
000% of rubbish

Figure 5: Where cur recycling and waste went in 2020-21

Waste composition

Understanding the compaosition of waste in Sumey provides a valuable insight on whers o
target future respurce to reduce waste and increase recycling. To that end we undertook

detmiled sampling and analysis of recycling and residual bins at housas and flats in the

24
Page 74



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

surmmer of 2021. Based on the matenals that each of the authonties are curmently able fo
aocept for recycling, Emor! Reference source not found.shows the proportion of each
mat=rial that was presented in the nubbish bin but that the analysis shows could have been

recyded.

. -
 Rcycianie - Bring banks ! CRCS
=0.000 m Mot recyciable —

Ry rryy
eﬁf‘iﬁﬁ *ﬁfﬁeﬁﬁﬁ‘%"ﬁ

Figure &: Recycling potential of residual waste 2021

In summary this shows that

e Mearty 20,000 tonmes of matenal in kerbside rubbish bins could be recydead.
Likewise, neary 80,000 tonnes are not cumently recyclable. A further 7,600 tonmes
could be recycled at bring banks or Community Recycling Centres.

# The largest proportion of material which could be recycled is food waste at nearly
H1,000 tonnes, over half the recycable matenal. Only a small proportion of food
waste is not recyclable — 2,700 tonnes of liquids and oils.

# There are significant quantities of plastics and paper and card in residual waste.
Horarever, onlty 40% and 30% of these respectively are recydable, at 11,000 and
8,000 tonnes. Some plastics such as films and flexibles aren't accepted at the sorting
fadlities we use. This is because they can become entangled in eguipment causing
blockages increasing machineny downtime and, crucially, the current crmeand markst
for these materials isn't substantial. Faper and card can become contaminated when
mixed with food waste, so is rejected for recycing when presented im this state.
Some paper and card (shredded paper, glittery Chrstmas cards and wrapping paper
ete. ) aren't acoepied for recycling as it can cause problems at the soring facilities we
use and the paper fibres are often of low grade or can't be separated.

END.

25
Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



Environment and Safe Communities Committee  Agenda ltem 6
21 March 2023

PLAYGROUND PROJECT FOR BOURNE HALL

Head of Service: lan Dyer, Head of Operational Services

Wards affected: Ewell Ward;

Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No

If yes, reason urgent decision

required:

Appendices (attached): Appendix One — Visual for prospective
playground

Summary

To seek approval for the provision of a multi-sensory play area in Bourne Hall park for
children under six years old.

Recommendation (s)
The Committee is asked to:

(1) Approve the procurement and installation of a toddler play area outside the
library at Bourne Hall as detailed in this report.

1 Reason for Recommendation

1.1 Bourne Hall is one of the borough’s most iconic buildings. The building is
listed at Grade Il and is noted for its architectural interest of a striking
design, space-age flair, and the generous, top-lit interior space.

1.2  The regeneration of this building is vital to ensure future sustainability. To
support this initiative, officers have looked at ways to improve both the
internal and external areas, ensuring the space is well used, well
maintained and attractive to residents and visitors to the Borough.

Page 77



2

Environment and Safe Communities Committee  Agenda ltem 6
21 March 2023

Background

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

At the meeting of the Community & Wellbeing Committee on 17 January
2023, members resolved to submit a capital bid for renovations to the
patio area of Bourne Hall to full Council for approval at their meeting held
on 14 February 2023.

Council agreed to this Capital Bid submission and works to the patio area
are due commence in April 2023 subject to the successful appointment of
contractors.

In tandem with the patio project, Section 106 funds have been identified to
enhance it with a small, multi-sensory space-age themed play area,
creating an improved visitor experience for those with young children.

Officers have identified a small space on the patio area to the rear of the
library which could accommodate nine pieces of play equipment and
safety play surfacing. Playground contractors have visited the site and
drawn up plans, which can be seen in Appendix One of this report.

The brief for the play area design is a result of consultation with
stakeholders and includes areas for sensory and imaginative play,
including a reading chair to link with educational activities hosted by the
museum and library.

The design also follows the space-age theme which is planned for the
café area of Bourne Hall ensuring synergy between the two areas, with
the aim of driving footfall to the café and other parts of Bourne Hall.

If members agree the proposed play area, it makes sense for the patio
renovations and the play area installation to take place at the same time,
ensuring minimum disruption to visitors and to be ready for the re-launch
of Bourne Hall in May and the start of the summer season.

As the proposed play area design will preserve the existing openwork
wall, which is noted by Historic England for its use of sculptural concrete
blocks, the Council’s Conservation Officer has stated that there is no need
to obtain listed building consent. Additionally, the play equipment has
been selected to ensure that it does not exceed the four-metre height
restriction to ensure compliance with Permitted Development Rights.

Risk Assessment

Legal or other duties

3.1

Equality Impact Assessment

3.1.1 The patio renovation and play area installation provides suitable
disability access.

Page 78



Environment and Safe Communities Committee  Agenda ltem 6
21 March 2023

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Crime & Disorder

3.2.1 As this is a locked park there is less chance of vandalism and anti-
social behaviour associated with the installation of these facilities.

Safeguarding

3.3.1 The proposed play area is clearly visible from the patio seating area
allowing young children to be in full view and easily supervised.

Dependencies

3.4.1 This project depends on the timely release of Section 106 funds to
progress the installation in time for the re-launch of Bourne Hall in
May 2023.

Other

3.5.1 None.

Financial Implications

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Contractors have quoted an estimate of £53k for the nine pieces of
equipment. A provisional £3k is recommended as a contingency, bringing
the total estimated cost to £56k.

Section 106 funds of £40k are currently held for the specific purposes of

playground equipment in the vicinity. It is proposed that these are used to
fund the scheme, in addition to a further £16k identified from Section 106
balances held for Parks and Gardens and Environmental Improvements.

The remaining balance of Section 106 funds held for Parks and Gardens
and Environmental Improvements is £16k.

It is proposed that any balance of Parks and Gardens and Environmental
Improvements not required as contingency is held for the ongoing
maintenance of the playground.

The £40k of Section 106 funds held for playground equipment must be
spent by January 2030. The other Section 106 funds are not time-limited
but it is important that these funds are utilised for the benefit of local
residents.

Section 151 Officer’s comments: The financial implications are
included within the body of the report.

Legal Implications

5.1

Advice has been taken from the Council’s Planning team to ensure
compliance with Permitted Development Rights and it has been confirmed
that the project does not require planning permission or listed building
consent.

Page 79



Environment and Safe Communities Committee  Agenda ltem 6
21 March 2023

5.2

5.3

Legal Officer’s comments: Under section 106(d) of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 the Council can require sums to be paid on a
specified date or dates or periodically as an obligation in a section 106
agreement.

Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 grants the Council a general power of
competence to do anything that individuals generally may do. This would
include the right to use funds received from section 106 funds to fund the
play area.

6 Policies, Plans & Partnerships

6.1

6.2

6.3
6.4

6.5

Council’s Key Priorities: The following Key Priorities are engaged:

6.1.1 Safe and Well — play facilities enhance children’s overall health and
wellbeing

6.1.2 Opportunity and Prosperity — investing in our venues to ensure
sustainability for future generations

6.1.3 Cultural and Creative — raising the profile of this iconic building and
building on the space-age theme to appeal to new audiences.

Service Plans: The matter is not included within the current Service
Delivery Plan.

Climate & Environmental Impact of recommendations: none

Sustainability Policy & Community Safety Implications: investing in
Bourne Hall will ensure long-term sustainability of this important landmark
and visual improvements to an area are known to reduce the likelihood of
anti-social behaviour and improve public perception of community safety.

Partnerships: Close partnership working with the stakeholders such as
Surrey Library Services.

7 Background papers

7.1

The documents referred to in compiling this report are as follows:
Previous reports:

o Capital Bid Programme 2023/24 — Community and Wellbeing
Committee — January 2023

Other papers:

° None

Page 80



Epsom & Ewell Borough Council

KOMPAN'

Let’s play







Environment and Safe Communities Committee Agenda Item 7
21 March 2023

2023/24 ANNUAL INCREASE FOR HOME GROUND AGREEMENTS

Head of Service: Brendan Bradley, Head of Finance

Wards affected: (All Wards);

Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No

If yes, reason urgent decision N/A

required:

Appendices (attached): Appendix 1 — Home ground agreements
2023/24

Summary

This report recommends the annual increase to the home ground agreement charges
coming into effect from 1 April 2023.

Recommendation (s)
The Committee is asked to:

(1) Agree the increase to the charge for home ground agreements as set out in
appendix 1.

1 Reason for Recommendation

1.1 To agree the annual increase to home ground agreements for the financial
year 2023/24 and to note the rationale for the increase.

2 Background

2.1 Each year policy committees are asked to review and agree the increases
to fees and charges for the new financial year. This committee received a
report in January 2023 detailing the majority of fees and charges for which
it is responsible.

2.2 InJuly 2022, under the circumstances of a large increase in inflation,
Strategy & Resources Committee agreed a targeted increase in revenue
from discretionary fees and charges of 6%.

Page 83



Environment and Safe Communities Committee Agenda Item 7
21 March 2023

2.3 Due to internal changes, a number of services are now reported under
Environment & Safe Communities committee, one of which is home
ground agreements for football, cricket and bowls. These fees were not
included within the report in January 2023 and are therefore being brought
for consideration to this committee, to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

3 Proposals

3.1 The proposed increase for football and cricket home ground agreements
is 6%. This is in line with July’s Strategy & Resources decision.

3.2 The proposed increase for bowls home ground agreements is 3%. A lower
increase is proposed for bowls due to the market being more sensitive to
price rises. The Head of Service considers that any higher increase could
lead to a loss of a club, should it become financially unviable.

3.3 Epsom and Ewell has lost one bowls club in the past year, therefore a
lower increase in the 2023/24 fee is felt necessary to avoid losing any
more. Officers are currently promoting the bowls vacancy locally to
replace the lost revenue stream.

4 Risk Assessment
Legal or other duties
4.1 Equality Impact Assessment

4.1.1 Increased fees and charges could have a negative effect on uptake
for some service areas,. Managers have been asked to apply
realistic increases to avoid this.

4.2  Crime & Disorder

4.2.1 None for the purposes of this report.
4.3 Safeguarding

4.3.1 None for the purposes of this report.
4.4 Dependencies

4.4.1 None for the purposes of this report.
4.5 Other

4.5.1 None for the purposes of this report.

5 Financial Implications

5.1 The income from home ground agreements is included within the income
budgets for Parks which has seen an increase of 6% for the 2023/24
financial year.

Page 84



Environment and Safe Communities Committee Agenda Item 7
21 March 2023

5.2

5.3

5.4

Appendix 1 details the new rates but is considered commercially sensitive
and therefore exempt from publication.

Any shortfall in achieving the income budget as a result of a lower
increase for bowls and the loss of a club, will be met from increased
volumes in other income streams within Parks. Finance officers will work
with colleagues to monitor the income streams and ensure opportunities
for income generation are maximised where possible.

Section 151 Officer’s comments: All financial implications are included
within this report.

6 Legal Implications

6.1

6.2

There are no specific issues arising from this report, but the Council’s
resources will need to be applied to ensure that it fulfils its statutory
obligations and delivers its policy on equalities.

Legal Officer’s comments: None arising from the contents of this report.

7 Policies, Plans & Partnerships

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.1

Council’s Key Priorities: The following Key Priorities are engaged:
Effective Council.

Service Plans: The matter is included within the current Service Delivery
Plan.

Climate & Environmental Impact of recommendations: None for the
purposes of this report.

Sustainability Policy & Community Safety Implications: None for the
purposes of this report.

Partnerships: None for the purposes of this report.

Background papers

The documents referred to in compiling this report are as follows:
Previous reports:

o Budget Targets Report — October 2022

o Fees and Charges 2023/24 — January 2023

Other papers:

o Revenue Budget 2023/24 report — January 2023

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
to the Local Government Act 1972. ﬁgggggl)l(telm 7

Document is Restricted

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	4 Tree Management Plan
	Tree Management Plan Appendix 1
	Tree Management Plan Stakeholder Consultation Statement Appendix 2

	5 Surrey Environment Partnership - SEP2025
	Surrey Environment Partnership - SEP2025 Appendix 1

	6 Playground Project for Bourne Hall
	Playground Project for Bourne Hall Appendix 1

	7 2023/24 Annual Increase for Home Ground Agreements
	2023/24 Annual Increase for Home Ground Agreements Appendix 1


